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ASSEMBLYMAN ALEX DeCROCE (Chairman): Good morning, 

ladies and gentlemen. This morning the Assembly.Transportation 

and Communications Committee will hold its second hearing on 

the ope r at i on s o f the De 1 aw a re Jo i n t To 11 Br id g e Co mm i s s i on . 

26th Legislative District, which is Morris, Passaic, and Essex 

With us this morning, from New Jersey, are: 

Assemblyman Fred Nickles, of Atlantic County; Assemblyman Jic?.ff 

Warsh, of Middlesex County; and Assemblyman Jerry Green, from 

Middlesex County. Also, working with us again today, from the 

Pennsylvania General Assembly are: Representative Andrew J. 

Carn, from Philadelphia County -- thank you for coming, Andy; 

Representative Dennis Leh, from Berks 

Representati·,.e T·:Jm Druce, from Bucks Cc~unt~/. 

County; and 

J.. «/t:lcvrn'= 1 ·_,._! 

all, and thank you again for being with us. 

At our first hearing we heard testimony from the 

Executive Director of the Toll Bridge Commission regarding 

certain personnel, purchasing, and financial policies of the 

Commission. Today we are going to hear from past officials and 

executive em~loyees of the Commission reaardina the same 

: : "..: -~ ~ e r s . 

Before we begin, I want to indicate for the record 

that all of our witnesses have come forward voluntarily and in 

the spirit of cooperation. I am certain we will receive 

information, or testimony today which will help us to determine 

i f co ri s t r u ct iv e ch an g es s ho u 1 d be made at the Co mm i s s i on to 

further its charge as a public agency. It seems to be that in 

the:=; e cJ a y::; when pub 1 i c agencies 0 re '} iv en 1 t r 1 1 s t- :,. ,, -1 ;:, 

L ~.:: ;j r : ) n ;-;; i. b i l j_ t .. / I 

are being violated. 

authorities have their 

aspects with regard to 

Only today we are 

own problems with 

spending po 1 icies. 

1 

finding that 

regard to 

So I think 

oth~r 

certain 

it is 



go 1Jd that both Pennsylvani.J and the ~;tate rJf !1er,-T ,Jec:;c:::-/ tJk 1-~ :1 

good, hard look at some of their commissions and some of their 

bistate authorities, td see if we can ~et the~ to work a little 

bit better for the general public. That is what we are all 

Destribats, former Chairman of the Delaware River Joint Toll 

Bridge Commission. Good morning, Mr. Destribats. 

J A Y D E S T R I B A T S, ESQ.: Good morning, Mr. 

Chairman. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Thank you so much for coming 

before us today. 

What is your profession, sir? 

MR. DESTRIBATS: I am an attorney, Mr. Chairman. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: How long have you been 

a s soc i a t e d w i th the Jo i n t To 11 B r i d g e Co mm i s s i on , a n d i n · .. 1 ha t 

capacity? 

MR. DESTRIBATS: I was appointed in 1984, and my last 

term ended in April of 1992. I spent eight years, my last year 

as Chairman. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Okay. Mr. Destribats, would y0u 

please describe the hiring procedures for personnel at the 

MR. DESTRIBATS: Yes, sir. From a Commissioner's 

point of view, I would learn when a vacancy would occur, and 

that was done through attrition, and I would, as a 

Commissioner, submit a name, or request an application be sent 

to an individual. From there, the application was proces~ed in 

our Personnel Department. That individual was interviewed; had 

;:j police ~heck done; received a minimum medical examinal-:inn; 

1 ; l' 1 1- l H:~ n ·, / u u l J. b t-~ d pp c int e cJ • 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: When these things happened, was 

there any allocation of positions that was given to either the 
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State of New Jersey or the State of Pennsylvariia, and how did 

that occur? 

MR. DESTRIBATS: 

something where we on this 

There was, and that was always 

s id e o f the r i v e r made s u re th a t r11e 

;.i: 
J_ L 

•• ~ 1 ; 
•• · _t_ 

l-- -
; ' 

and the State of New Jersey. That was accomplished by each 

position having an origin. If, in fact, a toll collector was 

hired originally from Mercer County, and that toll collector 

retired, that would be, not only a New Jersey job, but a Mercer 

County job. I shouldn't restrict it to county, because 

actually it was districts. We had three districts. That 

position would be filled from a recommendation from that 

district, and therefore we always kept balance. 

The only time that procedure was not followed was when 

as in the case when we opened I-78. We needed a complement 

of 40 or 50 new employees. Those employees, half came from the 

Commonwealth and half from the State of New Jersey. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: How did you keep track of these 

positions and how they were allocated, and to what district? 

MR. DESTRIBATS: There was a record. There was a 

record that had the origin of every oosition; that is, the 

_._ocac1on and a very tracking was kept. Even i.r: a per::;0n 

were hired from Mercer County, then moved to Pennsylvania, and 

then retired, ·that would be a Mercer County, New Jersey 

position, and you would look to that area to replace that 

person. 

.ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: What involveme.nt did the 

Commissioners have in these hiring practices? 

'.)EST R I B l1. 'T '.~ : -, ;"". l L:-, 

c i l l t 11 e p <) => i t i u n s . 

in doing this; some were more passive, but Commissioners would 

recommend people to fill the positions. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: When you speak of a record that 

was kept, how long was this record kept in existence? 

MR. DESTRIBATS: I think forever. It was there when I 

got there. You see, each time there was an opening, obviously 

,Tersey, we knew where that job was to be filled from. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Let me ask you this: Did they 

ever did they ever participate in advertising for these 

positi-0ns, or were these strictly done in-house? 

MR. DESTRIBATS: No advertising ever, that I know of. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Was there a listing of positions 

that was put on the boards so somebody could apply, or was 

there ever a record kept of what jobs· were given out or kept 

for Commissioners to hand out, or whoever? 

MR. DESTRIBATS: Well, yes. When a vacancy occurred, 

you would-- As a Commissioner, you would learn that a vacancy 

was going to be open. In our monthly meeting, we had a list of 

all retirees, so we knew in advance when positions were going 

to be open. I don't know that there was any posting, except 

for promotions. That was a different matter. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Did these positions-- Were they 

executive, as well as being normal toll collection and law 

enforcement, or what have you? 

MR. DESTRIBATS: Everything. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Everything, from top to bottom? 

MR. DESTRIBATS: Top to bottom. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Okay. I noticed, in looking 

back over the mate·rial I was given, that there was a lot of 

political input on a lot of these positions. Was that common 

oractic~ on both sides of the river? 

ME . DEST R I EATS : Bo t 11 s i w~ 0 ; .b o t h p a r t i '2 :.:i • L c:: . ::. . 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Would they hold precedence over, 

maybe a Commissioner, or anyone else just applying for a 

position? 
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MR. DESTRIBATS: 

as a Commissioner? 

I.f I recommended a person For a job, 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Yes. 

MR. DESTRIBATS: Yes, I would think so. If that 

pe son didn't get the jclJ, but was qualified, c;nu i_;a:::;,~>-:'' t-:iH:: 

person was not appointed. And I would probably, as a 

Commissioner -- I'm speaking generally for all 

I would probably want to know why. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: If I, as 

Commissioners 

a particular 

legislator, submit a name and you may have your own name that 

you. submitted, ·would mine be given preference? Is that what 

you're saying, in all cases? 

MR. DESTRIBATS: Well, with different Commissioners, 

Mr. Chairman, it worked a different way. We had some very, 

"le r y act iv e po 1 i t i ca 1 Co mm i s s ion er s . We had Co mm i s s i one r s who 

were not so active. I would classify myself as not being 

really active, and therefore I would look to other sources for 

recommendations. If you called me and I subrni tted that name, 

that person, if it were my opening, should be appointed. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: I see. The present Executi·:e 

Director test~fied that a member of the general public applvinq 

for employment at the Commission is given equal treatment to 

someone applying upon recommendation of the Commissioners, and 

that· jobs were filled according· to· a person's qualifications. 

Now, is that now, and was it then, or does it apply now at all? 

MR. DESTRIBATS: Well, obviously I haven't been there 

since April of· '92, but the Executive Director would be coming 

from one way and a Commissioner from the other, and a 

r0mmissi•rner who recommended s0menn~ wo1J1c1 e:::pc::>r+: th:'.1+- ners0n 

·~ , -' be a pp o i n t e d . 

Now, obviously there would be some pressures if the 

Executive Director was trying to keep it all equal. But a 

Commissioner with a strong will, if he had someone he wanted 
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appointed-- Obviously the Executive Director, in my opinion, 

would be under a lot of pressure. to appoint that person -- have 

that person appointed. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: And specifically, if it came 

from some legislator on either side of the ri·1er. Is that what 

vou're . ? saying. 

MR. DESTRIBATS: Yes, yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Would the people applying for 

these jobs get--· Would their credentials be examined? Would 

they be checked out, as you mentioned earlier? 

MR. DESTRIBATS: Oh, yes, yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: And the one with the highest 

credentials-- Would he always get the job? 

MR. DESTRIBATS: Well, Mr. Chairman, highest 

credentials-- For our entrance level positions, I believe the 

criteria was a high school diploma, and not much beyond that. 

So to say that you always got the most qualified-- I don't 

think you could say that, but I don't know that there were 

great -- that there was a great disparity in the qualification 

of the applicants either. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Would the people who recommended 

these positions to you-...:. First of all, was that cominq from 

the Personnel Department, from the Executive Director, from a 

standing committee of the Commission? How do these jobs come 

to the Commission? 

MR. DESTRIBATS: As I said, we knew when a vacancy was 

going to occur. We would have a retirement of a bridge officer 

in District · l -- that's ·Trenton/Morrisville -- and the second 

quest ion would be: Is that a Pennsylvania or New Jersey job? 

Aaain, back to the 0rigin of that job. If it was New ,J~rse~.,., I 

:/Fi ~; t he Co mm i s s i one r i n Di s t r i ct 1 a c tu a 11 y t he t. e ',.; e 1 e ,_ ·.; <' 

of us -- and I would submit a name, and the next time the other 

Commissioner would. 

6 



ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: So_ what you are saying is, there 

was an equal amount of distribution, and Commissioners on 

either side had the opportunity to appoint from their 

representative districts, 

MR. DESTRIBATS: 

let's say? 

E:-c act 1 y . I w o u 1 d n c t a pp') i n t a n y 0 n ~ 

north of my district, which ended in Hunterdon County, nor 

would anyone from District 2 or District 3 appoint anybody in 

District 1, which is Mercer/Bucks -- Mercer/Hunterdon. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: And there was a record kept, or 

f1 so-called "job book" was kept? 

MR. DESTRIBATS: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Is it still kept today, do you 

think? 

MR. DESTRIBATS: I would think so, because that is the 

only way-- You can imagine, Mr. Chairman, there is a lot of 

competition on both sides of the river. In order not to ha?e 

things become unbalanced, we were always looking for equality, 

and those records would provide that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Let me ask you this: With 

regard to legislators on either side, would you say they more 

t 11 a n t o o k a d v a n t a g e o f t he s i tu a t i o n w i t h r e g a r d t 1-=> a t t e :n p t i n r~i 

to put the i r o_wn p e op 1 e i n cert a in po s it ions - - on e i the r s id e? 

MR. DESTRIBATS: Well, in my experience, Mr. Chairman, 
' elected officials are constantly being called upon to provide 

jobs for people. The people I know, ·whether they be mayors or 

state representatives or ·county representatives, are always 

cal led upon to provide employment. Now, those people that I 

knew would say, "Jay, ~hen there is an opening, I have a person 

who needs a job. He is a good man, and he was just laid off. 

P 1 ea s e keep h i"m i n mi n d . " So I would get that name, and then 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Except that some of these 

positions were extremely lucrative. Many times-- Not many 

times, but at least two times that I am aware of, Commissioners 

7 



have stepped down to become so-called superintendents of a 

district. Isn't that true? 

MR. DESTRIBATS: That's true. I am familiar with one 

of those. No, I am familiar with a couple, yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: But that was done on t-heir "'d1-: 

accord, as Commissioners. Let me ask you this: Obviously, no 

one advertised for those positions, or no other people came 

forward. They just--· I don't know if they came from either 

state or both from one state, or whatever however that 

worked. I assume that was the practice. 

MR. DESTRIBATS: That was the practice. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Okay. Did the Commissioners 

ever discuss advertising jobs at all? 

MR. DESTRIBATS: I don't recall hearing it discussed. 

If it was, it would not have been a very popular topic of 

conversation. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: How would you know, then, that 

you had the top executive for an executive position unless you 

really tried to qualify those people? I mean, even yourself, 

as Chairman of that Board, wouldn't you question when someone's 

name was submitted to you, regardless of whether he ~as ~ 

Republican or a Democrat~ on either side of the river? 

MR. DESTRIBATS: Well, iirst of all, when fGU are 

recommending someone for a top position, as a Commissioner you 

would not recommend ,someone who did not have the 

qualifications. Now, whether it was the top qualified person, 

that is hard to say, and I doubt that it was, but I think that 

is true all over. It was a qualified person, and that is about 

as far as we went. 

Also, the Commissioner recommending that person 

person were not up to the position, then, in rare instances, he 

or she· would be let go. That didn't happen very often. The 

Commission got some pretty capable people. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Would you say that in your 

tenure as Chairman of the Board tha~ you felt that certainly in 

the area of executive hirings, those people were probably the 

most qualified that could sit in those positions? Or, do you 

think you could have done better had you had a better -- if yrrn 

co11lc1 have advertised for them, or maybe solicited the gen 1-?r,1J 

public for a position here and there? 

MR. DESTRIBATS: Oh, I would have to cone l ude that if 

you really went out on a job search, you probably could have 

gotten more qualified. But I would add that the people who 

were hired were qualified for the positions. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: It just seems to me that in 

these days when people are really. out of work all over the 

place-- I think more of an opportunity should have been given 

through the Co mm i s s ion to the gene r a 1 f e 11 ow on the s t re et . 

I'm sure, as you said, that it was the general practice the way 

these things were done in the past, but today things are 

changing. 

would see 

I would hope that the people who are in power now 

that. 

I am going to open up the questioning to other 

members. If anyone has 3 question of Mr. Destribats, plea3e 

let me know:, and I will be glad to entertain your 

considerations. 

Mr. Green? 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: Yes .. During the course of· your 

presentation you mentioned, quite often, job qualifications. 

It is obvious that no one had to take a test. Am I correct? 

Can you explain to me what your qualifications were for these 

different positions? 

MR. DESTRIBATS: Well, you are quite correct, 
. . . 
•<<; e f i1U .L ~lrrl Ll n . 

The only tests were given for promotions after they arrived. 

But obviously, if you were looking for a certain position, you 

would require the candidate to have the qualifications for that 

9 



position. We did have job descriptions. Certain 

required a college· degree. Each position had 

description, and the applicant must fall within that. 

positions 

its own 

So what I am saying, in response to the Chairman's 

q u es t i on , i s th a t p e r haps we di d not have the t 1J p p 1-:J :::.; ~; i b l ~ 

candidate, but the person taking the job was qualified, in the 

Commission's view. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: Was any background check being 

done on the new employees in terms of--

MR. DESTRIBATS: Yes, sir. My understanding is that 

every employee-- I am not sure if this goes all the way down 

to the clerical, but certainly from entrance level bridge 

officers and up, they have a police check done. 

it is done by the New Jersey State Police. 

In New Jersey 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: What corrections have you made 

since this investigation started, because it is obvious that it 

is not what is good for either state, in terms of how you hire 

people. It is obvious that it is political. Have you seen any 

improvement in terms of--

MR. DESTRIBATS: Well, as I said, Assemblyman, I have 

not been there since April of '92, but prior to that, and e"l~n 

prior to the investigation, because of court decisions, the 

p r a c t i c es were ch an g e d . Ou r a pp l i ca t i on sys t em """a s c 11 an g e d . 

It was expanded. Applications were made more available to the 

public. The political aspect was toned down, if you will. I 

cannot say that it vanished, but it was toned down a bit. And 

incidentally, that was as a result of a strong recommendation 

from our labor. counsel and our attorneys. . We have a common -

Pennsylvania and New Jersey counsel on the Commission, and a 

special labor counsel. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: All right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: Just like politically people are 

hired, were people fired politically in case they had a 

disagreement with someone who was their sponsor? 

10 



MR. DESTRIBATS: No, never. Oddly enough, once you 

came on the Commission, very, very few people were discharged, 

and never, never was I aware that someone was let go for 

political reasons. Once you were in, then, as I said, the 

p r u c e du r e a 1 mo s t f o 11 owed C i v i 1 Se r v i c e . Yo u t o o l·: e ;-:: a: n s ; y 1) u 

were promoted; and you were not discharged because of your 

political affiliation, or your lack thereof. You were pretty 

much on your own. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: As an employee, if I had no union 

and no Civil Service, then what guarantee did these people have 

that they weren't going to get fired if they stepped on 

someone's toes, or they didn't donate .to the right person? 

MR. DESTRIBATS: No guarantee, except the tradition of 

the Co mm i s s ion . The emp 1 o ye es that I t a 1 k e d to , and con v e r s e d 

with, thought it was a pretty good place to work. They enjoyed 

working there, and they were all pretty happy working there. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: You didn't answer my question. 

Maybe I wi 11 answer it for you. There is no security. Am I 

right or wrong? 

MR. DESTRIBATS: Technically the answer would be, 

there is no security. But on the other hand, no one that I 2~ 

aware of was ever let go for political reasons. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: Thanks, Mr. Chairman. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Thank you. Representative Carn? 

REPRESENTATIVE CARN: No questions. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Assemblyman Nickles? 

ASSEMBLYMAN NICKLES: Just one question. 

MR. DESTRIBATS: Yes, sir? 

ASSEMBLYMAN NICKLES: How many times over your tenure 

did y0u recommend someone and that person not be appointed to 

t~.;J'_:: F 1_::itiun·: Maybe a perc~ntage C1nswer. 

MR. DESTRIBATS: I think only once. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NICKLES: Probably 99 percent of the time 

your recommendations--

11 



MR. DESTRIBATS: The reason was, to my embarrassment, 

that p~rson did not pa~s the State Police check. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NICKLES: Good. Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Assemblyman Warsh? 

;\SSEMBLYMAN WARSH: Thank you, Mr. Chri i rman. (::;1· 1 iJ 

morning. The Delaware River Joint Toll Bridge Commission-

Does that have to comply with New Jersey's Open Public Meetings 

Act? 

MR. DESTRIBATS: An interesting question. Our 

counsel, both Pennsylvania and New Jersey, concluded that we 

did not. However, we tried to follow the Act. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WARSH: On what grounds did they decide? 

Certainly it is a public body that spends taxpayer dollars. 

MR. DESTRIBATS: True; quite true. I guess just 

because of the uniqueness of it being a bistate agency. -zr:ni 

know, we get into things, should Pennsylvania law control, or 

New Jersey law, or either? Or, do we have our own? 

ASSEMBLYMAN WARSH: Okay. What was the Commission's 

policy with regard to executive sessions? 

MR. DESTRIBATS: Executive sessions? Before each 

meeting before our monthly meeting we would have an 

executive session that commenced at approximately 9:00 or 9:30 

.i. ~ 1 ;:: n e ;"Jo r n i n g , a n d -,.; o u l d r u n up t c t: he ::. i: l1 e c.1 r _ ~ J.:::: ~ :::: ':.I u. ..... t.l .L 

monthly meeting that was at 11:00. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WARSH: What discussions occurred during 

the executive sessions? Were they limited solely to personnel 

or legal issues? 

MR. DESTRIBATS: I think it was tried to limit them to 

that. There is no doubt in my mind that we strayed on 

occasion. We covered a lot in the executive sessions. 

;..,SSEI·1BL-II·1AN Vi;...E:3H: ~·iould ·/ 1Ju Li•::: ,3bl~ 

disclose what -- when you say strayed, what those conversation3 

were about? 
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MR. DESTRIBATS: Gee! No, I really wouldn't, 

offhand. We had, you know, all the Commissioners there; we had 

our counsel there. We discussed a lot of matters. Nothing 

comes to mind, you know. 

. ;SSEMBLYMAN WARSH: I am curious . I w o u 1 d 1 i k e t 1
) 

exp 1 o r e t h a t e a r 1 i e r po i n t a 1 i t t 1 e b i t . When you s 0 i cl y· 0 n 

received counsel opinion that you were not subject to the Open 

Public Meetings Act, but you attempted to comply, was that-

Was the genesis for that attempt internal, or were there 

requests from the public for--

MR. DESTRIBATS: Oh, no, no, interna 1. We had very 

little-- I was always ·amazed·. We would advertise all of our 

meetings. Most of them were held in New Hope, but occasionally 

we went north. Very, very little public attendance. The only 

time we would see anyone from the public would be if there was 

something controversial in their particular area. But even 

then, I don't ever remember seeing more than a ha 1£ a dozen 

people from the public at any of our meetings. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WARSH: Just one last question, if I may, 

Mr. Chairman? 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Sure. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WARSH: Did the Joint Toll Bridge 

with transportation and bridge crossings, like commercial 

ventu-res or other things that some of our authorities in New 

Jersey have ventured into? 

MR. DESTRIBATS: No, no. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WARSH: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Thank you. Representative Leh? 

REPRESENTATIVE LEH: Yes, Mr. Chairman. Which nne of 

t ll ·~ :_; 1 ·! . ) ' . J l ; ; 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: They're both on. 

REPRESENTATIVE LEH: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
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Two of my questions 

Warsh. I would _just like 

were already_asked by Assemblyman 

to follow up. Concerning th~ 

Personnel and Finance Committee meetings, who attended the 

meetings? Was there normally a quorum present? 

MR. DESTRIBATS: Personnel and Finance Comm if: tee 

meetings were held monthly. Maybe not quite that often. They 

were held in the evening, usually a dinner meeting, at the New 

Hope headquarters, an6 they were attended by all of the 

Commissioners. So, yes., there was always a quorum there. 

REPRESENTATIVE LEH: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Representative Druce? 

REPRESENTATIVE DRUCE: When the Executive Director of 

the Commission would :r;ecommend the hiring of an individual, did 

the other Commissioners know that a pa rt icu 1 a r posit ion was 

a 1 re ad y ea rm a r k e d , i f you w i 11 , to an o the r Co mm i s s i o n e r , an cJ 

the re f o re i n those cases the f u 11 Co mm i s s i on j us t adopted the 

recommendation of the Executive Director? 

MR. DESTRIBATS: Yes, that is correct. 

REPRESENTATIVE DRUCE: I just want to clarify: As I 

read back on questions that I raised to the Executive Director 

prior, and look back on some of those comments, it appeared a::; 

though that position may well have yielded a great deal of 

l 11 I l u e 11 c e by ma k i n g r e co r;un e n d a t i u n s t o the Co mm i s s i G 11 L. i 1 a :::. c. .i. le 2 · 

seem to rubber-stamp. But if in essence I am hearing you, the 

Executive Director was, maybe most times, implementing the 

directives of Commission members to hire certain individuals, 
and hence there was the appearance that the Commission was 

rubber-stamping. 

MR. DESTRIBATS: Yes. 

REPRESENTATIVE DRUCE: Is that a more accur;:lte 

1 e ;:; c r i p : i on o £ how the Co mm i s s i on fun ct i on s '? 

MR. DESTRIBATS: That is much more accurate. The 

Executive Director did not -- maybe dictate is not the right 

word -- but he never dictated to the Commissioners. It was the 
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reverse. The Commissioners were very tuned in. They were 

active. I always. s.ay, "Your side of t.he river." The 

Commissioners were. much more -- much· more ··aggressive. But the 

reason for that was, three of them were elected officials from 

Cabinet; two were C1ppointed 

They were high profile re 1.>ple. They were guys wh'' werw. re:dlv 

politically active, much more so, I always felt. I felt New 

Jersey was kind of behind t'he Commonweal th. T thought your 

side of the river was much better tuned in, and we always kind 

of fought that battle~ 

REPRESENTATIVE DRUCE: Let me ask one question before 

we leave the subject of personnel~ 
ASSEMBLY~N DeCROCE: Sure .. 

REPRESENTATIVE DRUCE: If the Commonwealth and New 

Jersey were to get together and make some recommendations ~s a 

means by which to address at least the appearance tc the 

general public that you need to know a Commissioner in order to 

get a job, which is apparently what I am hearing being said, 

what recommendations would you suggest be made to help to try 

to open up that process a little bit more, maybe giving more 

discretion to the individual staff at the Commission in tee-:-:::: 

cif makino some decisions about hirino the best individuals, as 

as it may relate to· equal· opportunity employment, or disre.gard 

for geography, or what hav~ you? . 

MR. DESTRIBATS: Well, getting more input from the 

people who would be supervising the hirees would be one method 

of doing it .. Frank~y,. I think it. is. a yery,. ve:ry difficult 
... 

situation. I equate it-- I worked for the State of New Jersey 

some years ago. Now, the State of New Jersey has a very 

·;'I) lJ . l 
\ L , 

unclassified positions, very high level positions. They don't 

go out-- You don't see those in the newspaper. They are 

appointed. How do they get appointed? I would guess that they 
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are recommended by someone. This is the exact situation with 

this Cor:nmission. It is not something that-- You know, you 

would have to have a drastic change. You are changing the 

system, so to speak, in my opinion. 

REPRESENTATIVE DRUCE: Okay. Thank you, ;.Jr. r-ha i r:~ -, ;: . 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Thank you. Wouldn't yo11 say 

there is an awful lot of difference from, let's say, the 

hierarchy of the State of' ·Pennsylvania or the hierarchy of the 

State of New Jersey receiving appointments to certain 

positions, as opposed to any bridge commission, regardless of 

whose it is? I mean, there is an awful lot of difference 

there. These are political realities we ~11 face; that one 

Governor 

his own 

or another Governor 

political group in 

comes into 

with him. 

power, and he brings 

That is not unusua 1. 

Howe v e r , i n a b r id g e co mm i s s ion , i t w o u 1 d s e em to rn e h i g h l '1 • 

unusual it should be highly unusual -- that before a person 

should be hired, they have to be blessed by either a 

Commissioner or some elected official on either side, of either 

party. 

Obviously the abuses -- I call them abuses, frankly 

may have been going on for a number of years. It was a ~?~ 0f 

1 if e; it was a practice. Nobody ever thought about it. But I 

think now it is beginning to catch up, hopefully. 

Executive Director indicated to us, they are beginning to do a 

little bit more than they had done in the past. 

I would like to go into another . area: Would you 

indicate to me what the process by the Bridge Commission was 

for hiring consultants? 

MR. DESTRIBATS: Yes. First· of ·a11, the particular 

consu 1 t ant would either be from the Commonwea 1th or from New 

as a New Jersey Commissioner, I always lobbied ha rd that New 

Jersey got its fair share, and I think we did pretty well. 
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After it was determined where that consultant would 

come from, then I would ge.t a recommendation, usually, from my 

Governor's Office as to who to select. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: I'm sorry. Say that again. 

MR. DESTRIBATS: would get a name f;: ')In :~ 11e 

G0vernor's Office as to--

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: As to who should be selected for 

the position? 

MR. DESTRIBATS: Right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Let me ask you this: Were there 

more than one of any consultants nominated to the Commission at 

any time? I m~an, let's say Ne~ Jersey~- It was New Jersey's 

so-called turn. Did they nominate three different parties and 

then the Governor's Off ice ca 11 you and say, "Select party "A," 

or was just one consultant nominated? 

MR. DESTRIBATS: No, no. The Commissioners had 

nothing to do with procuring the consultants. They were given 

names; not three, but--

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: One. 

MR. DESTRIBATS: --one. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: By the Governor of either state·? 

MR. DESTRIBATS: Right. Now, I should hasten to add, 

·.,'i1e11 I u;:;e ;:i1e cerm "Go/e.:..Lur--" .l: n my e i g 1·1 t ye a-'-.:) , 

talked to Governor Kean or Governor Florio about Commission 

business. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: I understand. 

MR. DESTRIBATS: But it was always the Governor's 

Office·, the Governor's. Office.,.· and ·we· followed that .. · We were 

appointed by the Governor. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: I understand that. Were they 

tl1e {I L 1. ' ;~ ~ l_' I ' '._ ' '. ' : 

were made? Was there any time during your term that the 

Commissioners may have been unsatisfied -- dissatisfied -- with 

the person being directed by either of the Governor's Offices? 
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MR. DESTRIBATS: Not that I can recall offhand. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE:· F.ait accompli? 

MR. DESTRIBATS: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: To this day? 

MR. DESTRIBATS: Well--

P\SSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: To Apri 1 '92? 

MR. DESTR~BATS: I think so. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Okay. Did the Executive 

Director have any input into these discussions? 

MR. DESTRIBATS: Very little, in my opinion; no 

personal input~ I think to the extent that he may have gotten 

messages from the various Governors' Offices, but not his own 

input. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: You had an insurance company 

from Pittsburgh chosen. They were given a very lucrative 

contract, as I recall. Again, was that done through the 

Governor of Pennsylvania's. Office, whoever the Governor may 

have been at the time? 

MR. DESTRIBATS: Yes. That was a--. There had been an 

insurance consultant out of Philadelphia whose name escapes 

me -- who had been with the Commission for a number of years .. 

He was there when I arrived on the Commission. During my term, 

::i1e Fennsyl·1arua de.:..egation decided that: he should te L'.~pl2c~2, 

and he was. 

Now, it was a Pennsylvanic;i appointment, and I guess 

you would call it a "gentleman's agreem~nt." When Pennsylvania 

came forward with that appointment, New J~rsey acquiesced. We 

didn't challenge ·it, again, as long as ·the person had the 

proper qualifications. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Were 

the vendors of the Commission? 

perks provided by 

If s () I did }~·~' ll 

any of 

Commissioners or any of the hierarchy of the Commission en]oy 

those perks? 

MR. DESTRIBATS: From people that we did business with? 
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ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Yes. 

MR. DESTRIBATS: No, no. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: None at all? 

MR. DESTRIBATS: None at all. I can rec a 11 a dinner 

t a b be i n g p i c k e d up by someone a t a convent i on , bu t rv_ t h i '<: 
beyr)nd that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: No trips to San Diego or no 

trips to Puerto Rico, or no golf trips to-

MR. DESTRIBATS: From the vendors? 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Yes. 

MR. DESTRIBATS: No, absolutely not. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Okay. I would like to call upon 

Mr. Nickles. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NICKLES: With regard to financial 

disclosures, are Commissioners or executive officers or any 

employees required to fill out a financial disclosure report? 

MR. DESTRIBATS: As a. New Jersey Commissioner, I was, 

because of Governor Floria's order. But that did not apply to 

the Pennsylvania Commissioners, nor did it apply to any of the 

employees. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NICKLES: So, 

current time that would require 

there is 

either 

no pol icy at 

policy from the 

Co mm i s s i on i t s e l f o r f r o rn the s t a t es - - th a t w o u l d re q u n 2 3 

filling out of a disclosure form? 

MR. DESTRIBATS: Not that-I am aware of. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NICKLES: Do you think there should be? 

MR. DESTRIBATS: I think it would be a good idea, for 

certain top level people. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Well, where from? I mean, what 

l c: ·,· r-:: 1 :1 n rJ up? 

l-IE. DESTRIBATS: \•i e J_ l , probably the t c; p e 1.::: he .i n, i_ ii 

top half a dozen, the directors. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NICKLES: That is all I have. Thank you. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Is there an Ethics Committee on 

the-- Oh, I'm sorry. Gerry? 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: No, go ahead. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE ·: Is there 

made up in the Commission? 

committees at all? 

Is it one 

an Ethics 

of their 

Committee 

standing 

MR. DESTRIBATS: No. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE': .. None at a 11? 

MR. DESTRIBATS: No. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: 

possible conflict resolved? 

How are questions of ethics or 

MR. DESTRIBATS: They would be brought before 

entire Commission. I can't recall an incident where we 

such a situation. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Never in eight years? 

MR. DESTRIBATS: No, sir. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Okay. Mr. Green? 

the 

had 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: 

of line, just correct me. 

If this question is-- If I am out 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Well, we have· attorneys here. 

We will let you know if you are out of line. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: What about the bonding counsel? 

MR. DESTRIBATS: The bond counsel? 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: Yes. How are they chosen, the 

same procedure?. 

MR. DESTRIBATS: The same procedure, the Governor's 

Office. The first again-- We go back to square one: Will it 

be New Jersey or Pennsylvania? . When I. came on the Commission, 

Pennsylvania was very, very strong in this area. We fought and 

got some of the work back to New Jersey, when New 1Jersey 

would come from the Governor's Office. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: Who is the bond counsel 

presently? Do you know? 
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MR. DESTRIBATS: No, I do not. The last issue, the 

one just before I left -- we did some refinancing 

Mudge Rose that acted as bond counsel. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: Are any of these 

it was 

insurance, 

bond counseling, etc.-- Do you get an opportunity to C 1};1pare 

prices in terms of-- Are you saying to me that it comes f r0m 

the Governor's Office automatically, that this person is 

handpicked, case closed? Is that the procedure? 

MR. DESTRIBATS: .compare prices? 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: Yes. 

MR. DESTRIBATS: No. We trusted that they would be 

fair with us. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: So you are saying to me that if 

you decide that you want to choose me tomorrow to take care of 

your insurance, I am the guy, you don't have to qo out and 

w o r r y about what I am ch a r g in g you? I s that w ha t you · re s a y i n g '!' 

MR. DESTRIBATS: Oh, well, I do not mean to imply that 

the Commission gave money away. We were pretty frugal. If you 

charged us more than we were used to paying, you would have a 

problem. In the insurance area, especially in health 

insurance, we periodically had a review and looked to :ut 

costs. I do not want to give the impression that we just 

that it was open season. But if you were the person selected, 

you would be appointed. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: Through you, Mr. Chairman, is 

there a possibility that we can get a list of the consultants 

and the people who are the vendors? 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Yes. We will solicit those from 

the Executive Director. I'm sure he will give us a full list 

ASSEMBLYMAN 

additional questions 

DeCROCE: Does anyone 

for former Chairman 
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response) Hearing none, Mr. Destribats, I thank you for coming 
. . . . . 

before this Committee today. 

MR. DESTRIBATS: You're quite welcome, Mr. Chairman. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: . Thank you. 

Now the Committee would like to hear from Mr. Richard 

Van Noy, former Deputy Executive Director; currently the 

Executive Director of the Mercer County Improvement Authority. 

Thank you ·for.coming b~for~ us this rnornirig, Mr. Van Noy~ 

R I C H A R D VA N N o·y: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Could .. you tell me how long you 

have been associated, or were associated with the Joint Toll 

Bridge Commission? 

MR. VAN NOY: I was there for about six years, two 

months. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: How were you hired, sir? 

MR. VAN NOY: I was hired-- I was recommended by Mr. 

Destribats, and I was hired with the consensus of the 

Governor's Office in Mercer County. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: From New Jersey? 

MR. VAN NOY: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Could you give me a background 

on yourself, your educational/professional background? 

MR . VAN N 0-1 : Yes . I am a g r ad u ate o f R i de r Co 11 e g e . 

I had some six years of banking experience prior to having my 

own business for a short time. Then .I was with the Dillinger 

Company, where I attained the position of District Manager for 

the Apparatus Division. I was also involved in the political 

arena in Hopewell Township . for 12 years. ·I . was Mayor four 

times. During 1986, while I was Mayor, I did accept the 

n0sition of Deputy Executive Director of the Bridge Commission. 

ASSEMBLYM.AN DeCROCE: Could you please outlin'2 tor 7~l1s 

Committee the scope of your responsibilities as Deputy Director? 

MR. VAN NOY: Yes. I was a liaison to the Executive 

Director. My primary responsibilities were for the operation 

and maintenance of the facility. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: And,. going ba.ck to 

background, you were highly qualified for this position, 

were recommended by former Chairman Destribats? 

your 

and 

MR. VAN NOY: I would like to think so, yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Wel 1, obviously, it seems t-~o me 

that you were anyway. I mean, maybe I am making a judgment. 

Does anyone have a question on that particular issue? 

(no response) If not, I would like to call upon Assemblyman 

Warsh, if you will, to go into some questions. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WARSH: Good morning, Mr. Van Noy. 

MR. VAN NOY: Good morning, sir. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WARSH: Could you please describe for the 

Committee the hiring procedure which was in place when you were 

Deputy Executive Director of the Commission? 

MR. VAN NOY: Yes. As former Chairman Destribat~ 

mentioned, usually a particular individual who was desirous of 

a position with the Commission would make himself available to 

a particular Commissioner or a person who knew a particular 

Commissioner. When there was a vacancy that that person was 

qualified for, that individual's name was placed in nomination 

by a p a rt i cu 1 a r Co mm i s s i one r . Usu a 11 y those w o u l d co me ·:i b o 1_: '.= 

by a monthly ~eport -- and I think you probably have copies of 

those and it would say ''vice," and that indi~;idua.i.'s nai~le 

would either be New Jersey or Pennsylvania. There used to be a 

saying around the Conunission from our former Director of 

Personnel that, "Commissioner, I have one for you," meaning, of 

course, that there was a vacancy available, and should they go 

out and solicit a particular name. 

I would like to make an editorial comment along those 

lines, iE I could: 

:~ '.1e Comrni ::; s ion 

In my six ye a rs with the a 1_1 the; r it·;- - - ·:it h 

I w i 11 t e 11 you t h a t t he am o u n t-_ r~lf~ p e 1 ~1 p 1- '-; 

that I thought were hired who may have been deficient was very, 

very minimal. I would stake my reputation on the quality of 

the people that most Commissioners, both New Jersey and 
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Pennsylvania, 

the reasons 

gave to that Commission. 

that that Commission is 

operates the way it does. 

I think that is one of 

well main~ained and 

ASSEMBLYMAN WARSH: Was there a formal evaluation 

process for determining merit raises for the employees who were 

hired? 

MR. VAN NOY: The evaluation process that took place 

was strictly for new hir~s. I could try· to give you an 

example: If an individual was hired as a toll collector, that 

individual would be reviewed by a particular sergeant or 

corporal on that shift. It would be referred to the 

Superintendent, and then, in. turn, it would be referred to me. 

I either approved or disapproved it and sent it back to the 

Director of Personnel. That was ended after six months of a 

probationary period for those individuals. There was no annual 

evaluation. I understand that that disappeared prier t"J my 

coming to the Commission under the former Executive Director. 

I think his name was Jim Mitchell. At least that is what I was 

told. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WARSH: During the hiring procedure, prior 

to the point where 

forward and then the 

opportunity for all 

prospective hiree? 

someone was hired, 

procedure started. 

the Co mm i s s ion e r s 

a name was brought 

Was there ever an 

to int2rview- che 

MR. VAN NOY: . No, there was not. That . indi vidua 1, in 

some cases, would not even be known to most individuals. I 

think most Commissioners, at least the few that I know, 

basically kept their own records on people who were interested 

in positions. If a particular maintenance position would come 

up and they knew they had a maintenance background, i:vhether it 

be with a sewer authority, a public works department, or 

possibly a detective or 

officer's job, something 

submit that individual's 

something, 

along those 

name at a 
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Committee meeting, and it was approved by the Commissioners at 

the time. There had to be three votes from each state in order 

to have an individual hired. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WARSH: You mentioned when you were 

detailing your credentials that you were Mayor of a New Jersey 

municipality four. separate times. 

MR. VAN NOY: Right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WARSH: When you were Mayor and vacancies 

occurred in the municipal employee ranks, did you publish the 

opening and seek applicants publicly? 

MR. VAN NOY: We did. That is correct. 

ASSEMBLYMAN· WARSH: Is that a pr act ice that you feel 

is a sound practice? 

MR. VAN NOY: I feel it is a sound practice. I have 

t0 go back to the historical background, I think, of ~he 

Commission. In order to keep a balance between the New Jersey 

and Pennsylvania employees, and knowing the system as our 

former Commissioner has identified, and how those jobs became 

available, and the fact that they were that that was a 

function of the Commissioner, whether it be called patronage or 

any other ·word, I think that was the system that was designed. 

That is the historical system that was followed up until my 

leaving. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WARSH:. Were there ever ariy attempts from 

either staff or. Commissioners t.o reform that process when you 

were there? 

Director 

MR. 

had 

VAN 

come 

NOY: 

up 

There were. I 

with some different 

know the 

changes. 

Executive 

I think 

there was an application review and it was changed. I believe 

there was probably more interaction between the Execu~ive 

D i r e c t o r a n d t he a pp 1 i c a t i o n p r o c e s s , bu t t he Co mm i s s i ,~, 11 e r ;_; 

still had that function of hiring. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WARSH: I understand the need to maintain 

the balance between the states when you are obviously a bistate 
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agency., But within the context of a publi_cly advertised, much 

more of a Civil Service. kind of a process, you could have wound 

up with a pool of applicants from the actual region you were 

looking for from which to choose, could you not? 

MR. VAN NOY: You could; yes you could. 

ASSEMBLYM2\N WARSH: What was the--

MR. VAN NOY: May I add, though, I understand that 

there had been, from time to time, not while I was there that I 

can remember-- I didn't have 

remember that occasionally, at 

that responsibility, but I do 

least when I first got to the 

Commission, that there were postings of jobs available, certain 

maintenance, toll, and clerical jobs. PeopLe within the system. 

could apply for those. 

Prior to my coming with the Commission I understand 

that there were some advertisements. I would guess that maybe 

two, three, four, five people were hired that way. However, 

that was way before my time. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WARSH: Do you recall how many 

attorneys-- When you were with the Commission, how many 

attorneys were working as Commission employees or contractors? 

MR. VAN NOY: There were no Commission employees. We 

had counsel from both New Jersey and, Pennsylvania. Then we had 

a labor counsel, and I guess any special counsel that may have 

been needed for bond issues, or whatev~r. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WARSH: So then . the attorneys that you 

hired, for instance, the New Jersey attorney who was hired-

Was that a part-time position? 

MR. VAN NOY:· It ·was a contractual agreement as a 

consultant for the Commission. 

made be b1 e en the Co mm i s s i on and an i n d i ·1 i du a 1 a t to r n e y , o r th p 

Commission and the law firm? 

MR .. VAN NOY: Well, to my knowledge, it was done 

between the Commission and the law firm. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN WARSH: Did you tend to have 

representation from one attorney consistently at your meetings, 

either public or executive sessions, or did it rotate? 

MR. VAN NOY: We always had counsel from both states 

at all of our meetings . 

. Z\SSEMBLYM.A.N W!-i.RSH: L~t me i us 1:: restate th 8 +::: rt10---: i +:: 

one attorney? If it was Joe Smith, did Joe Smith show up every 

time, or did different attorneys from the firm show up at 

different meetings? 

MR. VAN NOY: Most of the time it was the same 

attorney, to bring about some continuity. There were occasions 

when, you know, there was a problem, where an attorney was in 

court, or whatever, but it was always both New Jersey and 

Pennsylvania counsel represented at the meetings, and 

predominantly the same per3on. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WARSH: So, when the Commissioners sought 

an advisory opinion on a matter, say, for instance, the Open 

Public Meetings Act or any other kind of advisory opinion, one 

was received by the Commissioners from the Pennsylvania 

attorney and the New Jersey attorney? 

MR. VAN NOY: That is correct. The Executive ~irec~or 

-- and I could be off on my time frame about two or three 

years ago, maybe longer, did instruct both the New Jersey and 

Pennsylvania counsels to get together.. I think that in their 

own minds they thought it . was going to be a lot easier to 

accomplish than it was. Once again, the time frame can be off, 

but as I remember it, it was about three or four months with 

some interaction back and forth, with some different opinions. 

Finally they came up with a policy that was agreeable to all of 

;-~ h c~ Co mm i s :::; i c· n e r s a t t he t i me 0 n t he Open Fu b 1 i c 1·1 e e t i n g s .Z'\ c t . 

New Jersey, of course, has a much stronger Act thnn 

does Pennsylvania, and they were, I guess, involved with both 

of those. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN WARSH: Were there times when advisory 

opinions from one state ·-~ from Pennsylvania differed from 

those of New Jersey, regardless of the law? Usually they say, 

as the old adage, "If you get ·two attorneys together, you get 

three opinions." I am an attorney, so I can say that. 

pretty much 2 s pi r it MR. VAN NOY: I saw 

cooperation between both counsels. I can't ever remember where 

there was a hard and fast issue that came about that way. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WARSH: Mr. Chairman, I would just like to 

explore one last area, and that is the Commission's policy with 

regard to summer.employees. What was the policy with regard to 

the hiring of summer employees, and how many, on average, would 

you hire? 

MR. VAN NOY: I would say that in the first four years 

I was with the Commission, the Executive Director always 

budgeted f o r about 12 0 s umrne r e rn p 1 o ye es . He t r i e d to s p r ea d 

them equally up and down the river. The last two years I was 

with the Commission, unfortunately we had many more than the 

120. I think the first four years we ranged from about 85 to 

90. The last two years I was with the authority, I believe it 

went as high, one time, as 160. So we were approximately 40 

over. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WARSH: What was the hiring procedure with 

regard to the summer employees? 

MR. VAN NOY: Once again, . there were names submitted 

by the Commission. I think it was always presented that each 

Commissioner should have approximately 12 summer employees. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WARSH: Did they have to certify a need 

for these employees, or was it just kind of a pot that was just 

r~ :; :._ .. ,' '? d u p a n d h a n de d o u t ? 

MR. VAN NOY: There was a general need. There was .::i 

consensus, I think, that this was to benefit college students 

and help them to defray their expenses, as well as provide 

certain services for the Commission. They had various jobs 
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from clerical to washi!lg cars to washing equipment to hosing 

down the lanes to mowing grass a considerable amount of 

mowing grass cutting down brush weeds along the roadways, 

painting guardrail, all kinds of various things. The problem 

they always ran into was the supervisory capacity. vle alwa:rs 

ha a to have a t 1 e a s t one . ma::"" l.::; ~~ t r.·1 rJ , sup e r vi so r s De r P. .,, e r y f i., e 

summer students. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WARSH: Were these summer employees all 

paid at the same rate, or did the rate differ depending on the 

job? 

MR. VAN NOY: No, they were all paid at the same rate. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WARSH: What was that rate, as you last 

remember it? 

MR. VAN NOY: You're searching my memory. I believe 

it was -- and I could be wrong -- $6.50. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WARSH: Did you find, sir, that these 

employees productively contributed to the operation, or did you 

think it was more trough activity? 

MR. VAN NOY: I would contend that I think the 

majority of those students we had working did a very good job. 

Na tu r a 11 y , we a re go i n g to have the v e r y , 'le r y f e w ~d ho a :i..- e 

going to be playing around. We a.lways had those little 

each year I was there. disciplinary problems, at least 

I will tell you this: 

. that I know of where I sent 

I had at least three occasions 

individuals home. I told them 

exactly why they were being sent home, regardless of who the 

Commissioner was. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WARSH: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: You had a total of 300 

1 :?rnp~.~yees, I was l 12d to believe, at the Commission. ; ; , ., '. • ·,r r_\ 1J 

;" r e t e 1 l i n g me t h a t you h r1 d a n a d cl i t i o n a 1 l 6 O p ,1 r t - l~ : · · · • , : · ·, ,- • .' -, · : 

this complement all together for the total 300? 

MR. VAN NOY: The last year I was with the Commission, 

that summer, I think it was 160, in round numbers. It may have 
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been 164 or 158. It varied, because some people left and some 

people came on, bu~ 1· thin~ the ~verage was 160~ That was in 

addition to our regular full-time employees. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Wasn't that an excessive number? 

MR. VAN NOY: Well, it was seasonal, and you will have 

+:o remember that we had a lot of roadway to maintain. If: 

probably was a lot, but I think it could have been better 

managed. I know the Executive Director had only budgeted for, 

and only requested, 120. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Did you give each of those 

people on a part~time basis an equal. amount of hours to work, 

or was it sporadic, one got a littl~.mqre than the next? 

MR. VAN NOY: No. It was a 40-hour week for the 

maintenance summer help. Clerical was the same. A 35-hour 

week was administrative employees. We did encourage people, if 

it was a rainy day, that they go home. Most of the students 

took advantage of that. They took the day off and went home. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Thank you. Assemblyman Green? 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: Yes. How long have you been 

involved with this authority? 

MR. VAN NOY: With what, sir? 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: How long have you been invo 1 ved 

~ith this authority? 

MR. VAN NOY: With the authority? With the Commission? 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: Yes. 

MR. VAN NOY: I was there for six years. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: Six years, so you should be 

familiar with all of the processes. Do you have an affirmative 

action program? 

MR. VAN NOY: We de, sir, yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: How do you enforce it? 

MR. VAN NOY: We have an affirmative action officer. 

We also have set-asides in our contracts. We have a group of 
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inoiv~duals who represent -:- I guess a New Jersey consultant, 

who represents and goes over our affirmative action programs. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: I listened to the previous 

speaker. He mentioned the consul tan ts and some of the other 

recommendations they had received from the Governor's Office. 

Have any minorities been recomm~ndecl to the Commission t 1) ::lrJ 

bond counseling, or to do some of the other what I consider 

high level jobs? 

MR. VAN NOY: I cannot answer that question. I do not 

know. 

were 

any 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: I mean, I'm pretty sure if 

there, you should have been aware of whether or not we 

minorities who had been given contracts, in terms 

consultants, etc. 

you 

had 

of 

MR. V.Z:..N NOY: There are minorities who have con~cJc~s, 

but on the bond-

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: Not just bond counseling. You 

know, we are talking about insurance; we are talking about jobs 

that mean something. I am saying to you, you should know 

whether or not Governors from either side of the aisle 

recommended anything of this nature to the authority. 

MR. VAN NOY: I do not know if--

ASSEMBL ""IM.AN GREEN: You were there for six years. 

I correct? 

MR. VAN NOY: Pardon me? 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: You were there for six years. Am 

I correct? 

MR. VAN NOY: Yes, sir. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE ! Let me correct one thing: Mr. 

'/0n Uoy is not there, and has n= +:: been there f 1}r -- lv=1 ~,, l -·nci 

now, Mr. Van Noy? 

MR. VAN NOY: I left in November. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: November of this year? 

MR. VAN NOY: Yes. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: So you should be up-to-date on 

most of those issues. 

MR. VAN NOY: That's correct. I guess maybe I am 

misunderstanding the question. Are you asking am I aware of 

the consultants who may have been a minority who were hired? 

ASSEr'1BLYM2\~l GREE~J: ~res, tvithin the six-y·e;:1; peri8rl. 

MR. VAN NOY: I know of only two consultants who were 

hired that were minority firms. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: So in six years you are saying to 

me that on both sides of the river, the Governors had only 

recommended two· minority firms to do business with this 

authority? 

MR. VAN NOY: Well, I can tel 1 you that the 

Commissioners were very sensitive 

contracts for both MBEs and also WBEs. 

to set-asides 

and did adher 

for our 

I am only aware or and I was not in the decision-making 

process the two minority firms. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Can you tell us where those 

firms were from? 

MR. VAN NOY: They were both from New Jersey. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN : So in s ix ye a r s the S t a t e r_ .c= 

Pennsylvania has never recommended a minority firm to do 

business with this authority? 

MR. VAN NOY: Not to my knowledge, sir. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Representative Carn, do you have 

any questions? 

REPRESENTATIVE CARN: Yes. Can you explain to me what 

set-aside requirements the Commission has in its contracts? 

MR. VAN NOY: Yes. There were certain percentages. I 

;1rn not sure exactly what those percentages were. 

was 3 percent and 10 percent 

set-asides for contracts 

adhered to those. 

maybe 3 percent and 11 percent 

for WBE and also MBE, and we 
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RE~RESENTATIVE CARN: Were these required or just 

requested, and were they adhered to? 

MR. VAN NOY: They were required and, to my knowledge, 

they were fulfilled. 

REPRESENTATIVE CARN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

J\SSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Does anyone else hi3'It.? ;:i (!11est~_r)n 

regarding this matter? Representative Leh? 

REPRESENTATIVE LEH: Yes. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. Van Noy, first of all, forgive me, I was out of the room at 

the close of the previous speaker's testimony. If this 

question was asked, I was not aware of it. 

What was the process .for the hiring of consultants 

providing professional services, and was there ever more than 

one consultant considered? Also, what was the criteria for 

~pproving a consulting fir~ for the contract? 

MR. VAN NOY: I'm sorry you missed that closing 

statement from our former Chairman. I really can't answer that 

question. That information-- I was always on the receiving 

end of that -- knowledge that the consultant was hired -- and I 

was always told it was done by the Authority's unit of New 

Jersey and the Governor's Office in Pennsylvania. 

Van Noy, 

believe, 

hiring. 

REPRESENTATIVE LEH: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE :· Representative Druce? 

REPRESENTATIVE DRUCE: Thank you' Mr. Chairman. 

I heard earlier your comment that it requires, 

three Commissioners from each state to approve 

Is that correct? 

MR. VAN NOY: That is correct. 

Mr. 

I 

a 

REPRESENTATIVE DRUCE: Six Co~nissioners total. Wuuld 

'/ '~' i i , :_ n es s enc e , s a y t hen t ha t t h a t i s t he he a r t:: o f 1- l 1 e on 1 i c y 

of the Commission in terms of hiring; that you need to acquire 

the approval of six Commissioners? 
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MR. VAN NOY: Yes. 

of course, to be dismissed. 

You also need six Commissioners, 

Bu·t that is correct. You do nee·d 

three from each state 

Pennsylvania. 

three from New Jersey and three from 

REPRESENTATIVE DRUCE: I guess what I am trying to 

ascertain is, that, in essence, is what the requirement: is, yet 

the system that is employed at the Commission is a set 

requirement of who is tontacted· and who is solicit~d in terms 

of filling vacancies. There really is not a process whereby 

there is open participation for applicants, and then six 

Commissioners would need to. approve those. Really the process 

has been simplifie_d, in essence, to the sense . that the other 

Commissioners need not participate, only the Commissioners 

whose posit ion is in quest ion, and then that spot is filled. 

Most times they are not accepted by the other <:ommissi·~ne:_·;). 

Is that correct'? 

MR. VAN NOY: That is correct. Normally, a particular 

individual's name is submitted at the meeting. That is voted 

on, of course, and it needs three votes from each state. I was 

never present when any less than the majority voted in favor of 

a particular person to be hired. I have never heard of any 

particular person being dismissed because of political 

affiliation. 

Obviously, I was of the minority when I -- at the end 

of my tenure at the Commission. I wi 11 tel 1 you -- in fact, 

there is a gentl.eman in this room who. thought my job was his 

job. The Executive Director stood up in my defense and said, 

"No. We do not, and will not" that he would ·not be a part 

of dismissing· anybody because of their political affiliation. 

That is the kind of rapport and security that this Commission 

\);::1;-; always had. 

REPRESENTATIVE DRUCE: Let me ask you: If the 

Commission were to advertise positions, would you recommend 

that in those advertisements the Commission, depending upon the 
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particular vacancy, indicate in writing that, for example, 

"Mercer County residents only need apply"? 

MR. VAN NOY: I dou.bt that that would be the 

advertisement that they would put out. I would doubt that that 

would be the advertisement. 

?r::PRESENTATIV"S ~Rtrr:E: Wo1JJ_d it be your s/:?nse t:hrit you 

probably would have an appearance in court if that was probably 

the advertisement? 

MR. VAN NOY: I would guess that it would definitely 

mean a court appearance. 

REPRESENTATIVE DRUCE: Then let me ask: If that would 

be the reality of publicly advertising a particular vacancy, 

then why operate under a system that now~ as you share with us 

publicly, in essence, is confirming the system that the 

r=c-mmission operates under? Why :,7ould +::he Commissi•')n ccntinut=> .:-1 

practice that if it was otherwise disclosed would probably find 

itself in court being sued by residents from other areas, who 

felt disenfranchised from applying for that particular job? 

MR. VAN NOY: 

that question. 

Well, there are just too many "ifs" in 

REPRESENTATIVE DRUCE: Well, no, I mean--

essence what I am saying is, did anyone stop to say, "If we 

we re do i n g th i s pub l i c 1 y i t w o u l d be wrong " '? 

MR. VAN NOY: I don't think there was a consensus, or 

even a conscious awareness that somebody was doing something 
wrong. I will tell you that I feel that our Executive Director 

at the time was sensitive to some outside influences, and would 

have liked, probably, to expand the hiring practices. 

I think you have to go back to the hi storica 1 nature 

of the hiring of both parties of both states -- how people were 

I 00n't think the Commissioners, eith':?r past ·ir 

present, would like to give up that, let's say, perk that they 

had in the hiring. I do think there was-- At least the last 

year, year-and-a-half that I was with the Commission, there 
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were. so.me advances. made in the hiring practices. I think they 

were trying to become, 1et's say, more professional. But, you 

also have to look at . the his~ory of the Commission. When 

things are going well, you don't try to disturb the process. I 

will attest before all of you that there are some excellent 

~mplayees with this C0mmissi0n. 

I think in District 3, we have some of the highest 

caliber of· people we could even think of,· and we have tasks 

that go from custodian to maintenance to toll to supervisory 

positions. The 

actually three 

labor market. that 

labor· markets. The 

we represent-

markets that 

There 

we have 

are 

in 

Warren, and Northampt-0n County are also excellent. That is not 

to say that there is not a good area in the Mercer/Bucks County 

area either. I just think that you represent these three 

rireas. The Commissioners have references they 1_ise, :·rhe"::her 

they be political, Assemblymen, Representatives, Senators, 

Congressmen, Mayors, on how that process comes about. They let 

that individual make application, and then they submit his name 

to the Commission. 

But I will say to you that I think that for the most 

part they do-- I can only think of probably, maybe aI1d 

there was a b~nch of people hired while I was there -- four or 

ii ·1e people who maybe after a second look I would not ha ·.,;e 

hired. I would ask the question in rebuttal: Is there anyone 

here who has had that success? 

.REPRESENTATIVE DRUCE: Well, I would say specifically, 

I don't think anyone here is questioning the qualifications of 

the individuals who are selected. I think what might be more 

at heart here is the integrity of the process. We -- and I say 

this jointly here where we are operating in what is to be the 

public interest--

MR. VAN NOY: Right. 

REPRESENTATIVE DRUCE: While I can certainly 

appreciate the pressures upon the Executive Director and maybe 
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even Commission members to act on behalf of recommending 

individuals, and understand that that is part of our political 

process in this country, there is a difference between putting 

names into consideration where there is an open process and 

tl i 1J s e w 11 i ch a re f o r w a rd e d w he re they a re spec i f i c a 11 y ea rm a r kc d 

;_ ,.., ~ p a r +: i cu 1 a r co u !1. t y , ;:i n c1 ma vb e e v ~ n t 0 ;; p a r !-: i c: u J ::: r 

individual. 

Let me ask you then in one final question, as I ask!~a 

the Chai:rman as he concluded: Understanding where we are in 

time now--

MR. VAN NOY: Yes? 

REPRESENTATIVE DRUCE: -:--and that this is 

that certainly didn't develop overnight and there 

something 

is a long 

history of this, what would you recommend be done to try to 

n pen up t h a t p r o c es s mo re so t:: ha t the gene r a 1 pub l i c r: an h ,3 • - e> 

more confidence in the Commission in terms of its hiring, and 

feel as though, "If I am from Bucks County," for instance, "and 

I send my application in, I need not worry if the little blue 

book" -- or whatever color it may be -- "says that that job is 

earmarked for someone from Mercer County; that I, as a resident 

of the Commom·:ealth, ha'ie as much of a chance t.'J ;Jet tll.:t'~ 

position as anyone else applying"? What steps would you 

suqgest? 

MR. VAN NOY: A great question. I have done a lot of 

thinking about that. .As a matter of fact, I even, at one time, 

kind of gave a subtle hint to the Executive Director. I think 

he agreed with me, although that is not the process we follow. 

First of all, when it comes to maintenance, or even 

toll or bridge officers, I would let ~he Superintendent have an 

active role 

nf thri:::>e, 

position. 

recommend, 

Personnel, 

in that process; possibly be the screening person 

f o u r , f i v e , t e n a pp l i c: a n t s , i f t hey (] e s i r e cl t h a ~ 

The i r r e co mm end a t i o n s o f t h r e e , t h a t I ~·Ju u l cl 

would be forwarded then to the Director of 

and also the Executive Director for further review. 

New Jersey State Library 
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If I had my druthers, that is the way I would recommend that 

the process be done. As a matter of ~act, that is the process 

that I have _at the authority I am with now. I let the 

department head do the screening. 

REPRESENTATIVE DRUCE: Okay. Thank you, Mr. 
('I • 
~ ~1a i rman. Thank you, Mr. Van Noy. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Are there any other questions 

before I go to Mr. Nickles? (no response) I have one -- two. 

To the best of your knowledge, are promotions awarded 

in a fair and unbiased manner? 

MR. VAN NOY: Yes,. sir, they are, and I was a part of 

that process, so maybe I am patting myself on the back a little 

bit. It was designed prior to my going_ there. I think it was 

designed-- I am not sure about this, but I think the existing 

Executive Director, as well as the Director of Personnel 

formerly, designed a 

done. That process 

process 

was: If 

that I thought was very 

an individual was desirous 

well 

for 

promotion and they were, let's say, a toll collector, and they 

wanted to become 

toll collector, 

~,1ishes known. If 

corporal, 

corporal, 

there was 

there were steps 

sergeant. They 

an advertisement 

you had to take: 

would make their 

on the board, ~ h '?~i 

would make their wishes known and apply for that position, at 

Now, about two. or three years ago, the Executive 

Di rector had an order that they must pass the written test 

before they could go on with t~e process. I thought that was a 

great recommendation.· I was part of that process. They would 

take the written test. They must have a score of 70 or above, 

at which time they were then given the opportunity of having an 

oral exam. When it came to a maintenance person, +::here ~·1ere 

fuur people involved: 

Chief Engineer, and--

mys e 1 f , the Di recto r of Fe r son n e 1 , t 11 e 

I'm sorry, there were three people, I 

guess. Yes, there were three people involved for maintenance 

and below. For toll, it was: myself, the Controller, and the 
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Director of Personnel. There was an oral exam given, which was 

about 15 questions, maybe 10. Then there was a 

Superintendent's evaluation, which was 20 percent. I think it 

was 40 percent for the written test, 30 percent for the oral 

test, and 20 percent for the Superintendent's evaluation, -:Jhich 

brought into play the seniority, their sick leave, their 

overall daily attendance and operation, and their attitude 

toward their position. That same kind of a procedure, but a 

different test, of course, was done for maintenance personnel. 

For a maintenance person who was a Maintenance Worker 2 worker 

who wanted to be-- Let's say a 2 or 1 worker who wanted to be 

an Assistant Foreman or a Foreman entered into the same 

process. I believe the Executive Director, about two years ago 

again, my timing might be off contracted with Bucks 

Countv to review the written part of the test, 

submitted their questions, which I have never seen -- and ~hat 

is the way it should be. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Was there ever, during your 

review periods for promotion in your committee, or whatever it 

was trying to go through these questions-- Was there ever at 

Jny ti~e inter7ention on either side of the ri7er by p~litic~l 

sources--

MR. VAN NOY: No, there was not. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: 

further or--

--to move that person up, either 

MR. VAN NOY: No. 

not. There was one other 

I can attest to you that there was 

means, by the way, of promotion. I 

got to the testing part of it. There was a 

Committee that incorporated the Chief Engineer, 

Tr1ining Officer, the Director of Personnel, 

Salary Review 

the Safety and 

the Manager (lf 

Administrative Services, the Controller, and myself. [f J 

person wanted to go from a Maintenance Worker 2 to a 1, there 

was a process they had to go through. They had to submit 

documentation that they met the job description; that they had 
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good work habits; that they were on time, were not tardy; that 

they had a good attitude about their work habits, and so on. 

The same process was done with clerical. The clerical 

was Secretary 3, 2, 1, and then Executive Secretary. If an 

individual wanted to progress in that stage, ~hey had to submit 

their recommendation to the Executive Director. He submitted 

it to the Salary Committee. They reviewed the entire process 

and made a· recommendation back to the· Executive Director. He 

always followed their recommendation, that I know of, and most 

of the time it was very positive. Very, very few times did I 

ever see a negative evaluation come out of that process. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Thank you. Lastly, I would like 

to know if you might be aware if at any time-- Some of the 

people that I met by virtue of the fact that we were doing 

t::hese hearings: who came to me, frankly, voluntarily just t-n 

bring forth their stories, and usually they were personal 

matters, would always indicate to me that for some reason or 

another-- Most of them were politically involved one way or 

another, whether it be on a county committee's position or a 

councilman's position, or whatever position it might be. 

Would you know at any time if any of these people ··ie~~ 

required to work for any so-called political official on either 

side of the river as part of their recei·1ing these positions, 

by virtue of their recommendations?· 

MR. VAN NOY: To my knowledge, that never happened in 

my entire time with the Bridge Commission. As a matter of 

fact, I will attest to the fact that not only I, but the 

Executive Director were very sensitive to that, and stayed 

completely away from that issue. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Thank you very much. 

Now we will go to Assemblyman Nickles. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NICKLES: Good morning, Mr. Van Noy. ~.t 

our last hearing we discussed a little bit some of the 

newspaper articles that dealt with certain toll collectors 
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employees stealing money, then not going through the 

criminality process the criminal process of . being charged 

with that, but rather just being let go. 

Now, that· brings me up to this question: In your 

opinicn, is the toll collection system and the <3t.~diting 

procedures adequate to ensure the integrity of the system? 

MR. VAN NOY: Do you want me to respond to the first 

part of your statement, too? 

ASSEMBLYMAN NICKLES: I would like you to respond to 

everything. 

MR. VAN NOY: Okay. Well, first of all, I was in 

complete agreement with the Executive Director .and anyone else 

the Superintendent, the Contra l ler, myself, and the Chief 

Engineer -- on the way that that was handled up in District 3 

~.;he n · 1 e f o u n d o u t t ha t t he re w a s s om e i n du s t r i a i_ s h r i n k ;:i G e 

(j1J i 11 g on . Bas i c a 11 y w ha t we di d was , we s a 1 t e d the sys c em , a n d 

I was a part of that. We handed money to an individual, and we 

marked it. The individual didn't write up the proper report, 

and whatever happened to the money I cannot attest to. 

Frankly, we had four times, with four individuals 

go1ng through the lanes, where we witnessed an individual t~ll 

collector -- collectors, I might say -- taking the money and 

putting up the wrong toll classification- for the money they 

were given. They are the only ones that we can attest to. 

Now, we found these individuals to be guilty. We 

confronted them with this, and the district auditor, of course, 

went on and did the rest of it. The bottom line was that we 

have taken these situations to court before, and in each case 

the crime was so minimal that the judges, on both sides of the 

ri?er, found them not guilty, 0r dismissed the case. We felt 

it was in our best interest to discover these incli·tiduals ~·1i:1_i 

were wrongfully taking money, or industrial shrinkage, whatever 

you want to term it, and dismiss them. We confronted them with 
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it. They pretty much admitted that the guilt was going on, and 

they were dismissed. 

Now, we can be chastised -- we meaning the Commission 

by the press .. for· that humane process~ but in a lot of cases 

in most of the cases these were young individual::; and 

adults. They made a mistake. They got their hands slapped 

They had a life to carry 

incarcerate them, or take 

their punishment was due, 

from the press themselves 

and they were fired from their positions. 

very hard. They were in the press. 

on. Why, you know, · let's· say~ try to 

them to task any further? I thought 

because they got a lot of notoriety 

Now, as far as my concern about the to 11 auditing: 

The Controller an~ I had had.many philosophical discussions on 

this. I was alway~ of the opinion that we should increase our 

P..11diting Department 

felt that we should 

by approximately two people. He ah1ay::: 

decrease it by two people. We had that 

philosophical difference. 

We also had another one, and that is the equipment 

that we had in our automatic toll lanes is and also our 

automatic toll lanes are 1968 vintage-- We had many give and 

take conversations on whether or not that equipment shculd be 

replaced. As you know, sometimes you win a few, and sometimes 

you lose a fe~. I happened to have been on the losing side of 

that particular issue. I still feel as if we should be doing 

lane audits. I still feel as if we should have an awareness of 

our auditors being present, not only the-- And they do make 

inspections, by the 

different offices. 

way, through one-way glass windows in 

I also think there should be some 

survei 11 ance equipment. We have updated our process a great 

c1 e a 1 by p u t t i n g v i s u a 1 e q u i pm en t i n t he t e l 1 e r s · r o () rn s , :3 n d 

that is one good step. I think there are some additional steps 

we should take. I say "we." 

should take additional steps. 

thing that the RPA has done, 

I am not ·there any longer. They 

That is possibly doing the same 

and that is have visual equipment 
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within the toll booths. That might be being considered. I 

don't know. That would be my recommendation . 

. ASSEMBLYMAN NICKLES: With the new toll booth system 

impro.vements over the 1968 models, would that keep a closer 

count C)'/er the moneys cc>m1ng in? I guess ~·1hat I am 100'.~in 1;J 

f o r - - You s a i d the re w a s a di f f e re n c e o f op i n i on . C 1J u 1 cl t h~ re 

be a sloppy accounting system of the automatic toll booths now? 

MR. VAN NOY: There is not a sloppy accounting 

system. What I think there is-- I used to be out in the 

lanes. This, by the way, is between myself and the 

Controller. We used to have friendly, but philosophical 

differences on this. I would see a quarter, when it was a 

two-way toll -- a quarter go into the machine and the red light 

go off. That was a definite ~riolation. I would get, "Well, 

you have 

do that. 

difficult, 

to prove • I- " 1 Lt 

Anyway, the 

and went on 

or ynu have 

bottom line 

to other 

to do 

was, 

matters 

this, or yr:J11 ha?e t,-~ 

I found it hard and 

about how we could 

improve the system. 

I felt as if, if you had a 1968 car, would you be 

driving it today? You would have a lot of miles on it. Do you 

1~,11'~''"' hen" many transactions go through those 

I just felt as if we should probably, 

standpoint, improve the toll recording 

automatic and manual lanes. 

things -:: -.~ e r y cl=:~-';' 

from a capital 

equipment in cne 

ASSEMBLYMAN NICKLES: Okay. With regard to your first 

statement, I 

manner. The 

want to take issue with you, 

term "industrial shrinkage" is 

in a respectful 

another term for 

stealing or theft. I, too, work in the public sector outside 

of a selected position, and I am responsible for 675 employees 

i 11 ci sch o o 1 di st r i ct . I +- i s :ny 0 t t i tu cl e th a t I a rn ~i 1-, +

res pons i b 1 e f o r w ha t the co u r t s do t hr o u g h a c r i mi n a 1 p r ') c e ;~ ;; . 

But, as people paying taxes, as people going through toll 

booths, in the situation of the Toll Bridge Commission, and 

that is quasi-public, I believe that that Commission, and every 
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public entity, should do 

of the process of what 

its utmost to maintain the integrity 

is being done. If we want to term 

things "industrial shrinkage," and say they were properly found 

gui 1 ty through the press, that's one thing. But I think as 

elected officials, or appointed officials representing with tax 

dollars, we have a responsibility. 

I just wanted to take issue with that. I respect your 

opinion on that, but I wanted to share mine with yciu and with 

the panel today. 

MR. VAN NOY: I appreciate that, but I will tell you, 

I st i 11 ma int a in my po s i t ion . I supported the st a ff on the 

position we took in those instances, and I still do that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Okay. Are there any other 

questions? 

P-..SSEMBLYMAN WARSH: Yes, I just ha\~e a few. Thar:k 

you, Mr. Chairman. 

Looking through the newspaper clippings on this issue, 

Mr. Van Noy, I see something particularly disturbing, and that 

is the amount of cash on reserve that the Commission had. I 

see through the Table of Organization that you supervised the 

activities of the Controller. Why it is--

MR. VAN NOY: No, no. I did not, sir. 

reported directly to the Executive Director; 

The Controller 

so did the 

Director of Personnel, and so did the Purchasing Agent -- and 

the Manager of Administrative Services. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WARSH: Oh, I see. I stand corrected. 

Were you aware, when you were at the Commission, of the 

substantial cash reserves that the Commission maintained? 

MR. VAN NOY: I was aware, yes. 

ASSEMBL-Ir1Ai1 ~·JARSH: V-las this 3 matter that l1'·:1 ·:er 

been discussed at an executive session or at a public meetinq 

of the Commission? 

MR. VAN NOY: It was. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN WARSH: Were the cash reserves on hand 

justified at any point, or can you justify that for us today? 

MR. VAN NOY: With all due respect, I think counsel 

should probably interject in this, because this is, I believe, 

of a Federal nature right now. I don't know the outcome of it, 

and I don't know that I should be testifying on that issue. I 

don't know. I will defer to attorneys. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: We are going to stand you 

excused from that question. Okay? I hope you will understand, 

Jeff. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WARSH: One last question, Mr. Chairman. 

I see a quote in here that, at least the current Executive 

Director, Mr. Catania, had indicated that in his opinion the 

Commission is not a public agency. In your opinion, is the 

Commission a public agency, or not? 

MR. VAN NOY: Yes, it is. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WARSH: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Okay. Assemblyman Green? 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. As 

Manager, what managerial changes did you recommend, and were 

any cf them implemented? 

MR. VAN NOY: Oh, well, you hit me with a question. 

There were several, and I have probably forgotten a few. une 

of them was-- I remember early on -- once again, you win a 

few, lose a few in my position with the Commission, I 

recommended that the Purchasing Agent not report to the 

Controller. I made a report on that to the Executive 

Director. He immediately changed that and had the Purchasing 

Agency report to him. I always felt it was not a good policy 

rn hC1·v·e th8 guy who pays the bills also be responsible fnr +-::he 

person who is buying the equipment. 

I made some other recommendations. One of them was, 

in the purchasing function, to further streamline it and help 

along with the large purchasing requirements we had, that we 
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promote an individual who was a receiving clerk to another 

title. 

Agent. 

one. 

longer 

I believe it came .up to Assistant to the Purchasing 

You mentioned some auditing changes, but I lost that 

I also made a recommendation that the tellers no 

report to the Controller; that they report to the 

Superintendents who had the responsibility for their time, as 

well as their scheduling. I lost that one. 

I made a recommendation that we give some authority, 

along with the responsibility to our Superintendents. That was 

on the purchasing level; that we give them the ability to buy 

up to $250 for their particular district, as long as they 

adhered to our purchasing regulations. The Executive Direct0r 

ap~roved that and made that ~ staff memorandum. · 

There are probably some others that I have forgotten 

about. Oh, I talked about risk management many times, and 

suggested that we should -have our because we have a 

self-insurance program -- we should have a particular person in 

charge of our insurance. That was pretty much done, and that 

person is with the Commission. 

That is all I can think of right now. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: So you won some and you lost some, 

right? 

MR. VAN NOY: Yes. That is true be it in the 

corporate world, as I was for many years-- That is the way it 

goes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: We 11, I am happy that you just 

mentioned the fact that you did come from the corporate world. 

It is obvious that the corporate world is strictly business. 

\•!nuld you feel the Commission O?er there is run like a l:n~~in.~::;'.' 

professionally, or is it run more like a political machine? 

MR. VAN NOY: No, it was not. 

businesslike manner. Once again, 

Federal matter that has come up. 
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run much like a business. We do have a vertical integration 

system. We do have a chain of command. It goes up, as well as 

comes down. I think, for the most part, it is pretty much 

businesslike. 

However, I will tell you, any individual who is a 

Deputy Director, as I was, also has their own ideas when they 

become Executive Director, just like our Executive Director 

had. So I think there is always an outside opinion that 

anybody has on the way they could run a system. I am not 

faulting the way it is being run now. I am just saying that 

every individual on their way up the ladder, let's say, has his 

own idea about how something should be run. And I would make 

some changes if I had that position, which I do not have. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: Do you feel that you were given 

t he au tho r i t y to manage the day- to - day ope r a t i on w i thou 1.:: ;~ w-~ 

influence from the Commissioners--

MR. VAN NOY: I was. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: --or did you feel that they had 

the opportunity to go directly to save someone in a low 

would management position and give their opinion, 

li3ten to them before they would listen to you? 

MR. VAN NOY: I feel as if I had a 

and they 

very excellent 

rapport with the Executive Director, and I also feel that he 

gave me the authority with my job description and below; that I 

had a pretty good rapport with all of the employees, whether 

they be Superintendents, ··As~istant Superintendents, Foremen, 

Sergeants, right on down to the custodian worker. I think I 

had an excellent rapport with those people. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: Have you recommended that a policy 

whom did you make these recommendations? Were the 

recommendations implemented? 

MR. VAN NOY: I did make that recommendation a couple 

of years ago, and I think it may have been done. I would not 
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be aware if it had or had not been. But I did make that 

recommendation at one point and, to my knowledge, it might have 

been done. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: Are you ·saying you made these 

recommendations the latter part of your career there, or was it 

early an? How long did it take for this to happen? 

MR. VAN NOY: Well, it was probably about a 

year-and-a-half to two years ago that I made the 

recommendation. Whether it was done or not done, I couldn't 

tell you because it would have been done either to the Chairman 

or the Commission or just in their personnel file. I don't 

know how it was done. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: When an individual has been in the 

corporate world, and you have been in the political arena as an 

elected official, would you feel at this point nciw that the 

agency is managed very, very well, very professionally, or do 

you see some problems that you felt could have been re so 1 ved 

when you were there, but because of a lack of communication 

with the Commissioners this did not happen? What area of 

problems did you see that you feel you can share with this 

b ,~, c1 y , s o we c a n go f o rt h and t r y to he 1 p get i t co r rec t e d? 

MR. VAN NOY: Well, I think you have targeted one of 

them, and that is probably the hiring practices and maybe the 

security of the individuals, although I testified earlier that 

I had never seen anyone dismissed or political pressure put on 

individuals. Everybody there probably has a political 

affiliation, or most of them do anyway. That has never been, 

to my knowledge, a conscience problem to those people. There 

has never been any pressure put on them about what they should 

I feel it is a public agency, and I know-- I am not 

sure how that quote came out of the paper, by the way, or 

whether or not Mr. Catania said that or didn't say it. I guess 

it was in the paper. I feel as if things have changed in our 
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world today. 

always felt 

I know that I have·. gotten a lot of experience. I 

the Commission a very good stepping stone to my 

present position. I hav.e. m.ade some change::;; there that I would 

have liked to have incorporated within the Bridge Commission. 

I guess hiring would probably be one of them. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: Also, when we talk ;:i bout hi r i n~_i, 

we are talking about the fact that, unfortunately, I happen to 

look at politics as business; that the State of New Jersey is 

in a big business; that Pennsylvania is in a big business. It 

seems like the remarks I have heard during these last two 

meetings is basically-- It is not looked upon in that 

particular way in terms of. how we manage. It is more like 

looking at it politically, rather than looking at it in terms 

of getting the best bang for the dollar for the citizens of 

both states. 

That is where I get confused in terms of what I am 

hearing you say; that you feel it was managed very, very well. 

The only problem that you saw was with the hiring of 

employees. But when you look at the structure itself, to me, I 

don't see the management there that should be there, especially 

.:::.~ rn i n g f r om a p r o f e s s i o n a 1 l i k e you r s e 1 f i n t e rrn ::3 J := b '2 i l 1 ·~ .._ _ 1 

corporate Ame~ica, as well as being an elected official who has 

dealt in both arenas. 

MR. VAN NOY: May I respectfully disagree with what 

you just said? I will defend that by saying, if you will -

not only at the hearing today, but for us-- If you would take 

a closer look at the Commission and how the maintenance is done 

at that Commission, the kind of reputation we have in 

maintaining our facilities, what has been done, the projects 

$12 million redecking at the Delaware Gap Bridge with a one-way 

toll; we had a redecking prior to that at the Milford/Montague 

Br id g e ; we have res u r f aced , and went the one-way to 11 at the 

Easton/Phillipsburg Bridge; and had major construction on the 
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Belvidere nontoll Bridge. We finally paid both states for 

their part in the I-78 Bridge,. as well as we. maintained 10 

mile~ of roadway. We. haye. ac~olades from people in New Jersey 
< • • • " • • • • : • • 

and Pennsylvania on how· the facilities are maintained and kept 

up. We have also redecked completely another nontoll bridge in 

Stockton. 

We have a regular painting program we adhere to for 

all the nontoll bridg~s, as well as the toll bridges. We went 

to a one-way toll system, basically by the way, to help both 

states in their Clean Air Act res pons ibi lit ies, so they could 

take credits for a one-way toll at the Trenton/Morrisville 

facility. In fact, we have competing bridges, two of them -

the lower Trenton Bridge and the. Calhoun Street Bridge -- right 

next to each other. There has been a loss of revenue there. 

That was a conscious decision. 

The Exec u t iv e Di recto r , a 1 on g w i th the Co mm i s s ion e r s 

of about three or four years ago, made a conscious decision not 

to raise the tolls until the year 2003. Somebody mentioned 

earlier about a $40 million or $50 million reserve. That 

reserve probably has to go to $75 million or $80 million before 

1996 or '97, when there is a drawdown, so that the t:Jll 

structure is maintained to the year 2003. I don't know of any 

other authority that has made promises like that. 

hearing, 

take a 

managed. 

well. 

So, rather than just coming today, or to the previous 

and hearing testimony from individuals, you have to 

more hands-on look at the way the organization is 

I would say that for the most part it is done very 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: Mr. Chairman, my last comment: If 
1' 

things you just rattled off to me 

the things would happen myself. 

I would make sure that all 

I mean, it is obvious that 

there is a lot of money being floated in; there is a lot of 

money being floated out. The bottom line to any corporation 
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is, if you don't have sound business management skills, if you 

don't have an agenda, if you don't have protocol, if you don't 

have all the things that go into running a good business, all 

of those things don't mean anything at all. 

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Thank you, Mr. Green. Are there 

any further questions for Mr. Van Noy? Representative Druce? 

REPRESENTATIVE DRUCE: May I ask one question? I 

share a little bit, I think, of Mr. Green's perception that 

while the Commission, maybe its end results being commendable, 

with a record that both states can be proud of, that along the 

way in achieving those goals there have been questions about 

how we have arrived at them. In essence, maybe we are winning 

the game, but not taking a look at how we put the players on 

the field. Under certain circumstances, and maybe other 

circumstances, maybe the end result of the practice we use may 

give us different results, and hence. we would be looking at how 

we arrive at those points. 

I just wanted to ask one question to get a reaction 

from you potentially on a recommendation and how you feel this 

,, .. ,_,ul:J impact, not only on hiring, but maybe on the c~:er.?ll 

operation of the Commission. If it were suggested to you that 

the Commission be reduced from its 10 members t:J fi'ie members, 

two appointed each by the Governors and a fifth member selected 

jointly by the Governors, what kind of an impact do you think 

that would have upon the Commission as it relates to some of 

the actions the Commission takes, and do you feel that that 

sort of a structural change might well give the current staff 

and Executive Director more flexibility in functioning and 

than as maybe a more active player, particularly as it relates 

to hiring? 

MR. VAN NOY: Well, I can agree with part of what you 

said; that is, I think the real key is if they can act as a 
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Board of Trustees and let the executive staff do the hiring, do 

the recommendations. Earlier testimony was, how do you hire 

consultants? Well, ladies and gentlemen, consultants were 

hired by politicils on both sides of· the river. I would 

suggest that if you want to change the structure, that is the 

structur8 I ·would change. I would not reduce the number. I 

would keep the number. As a matter of fact, I wouldn't even 

change the way they are appointed on both sides of the river. 

But I will tell you, I would let them act as a Board of 

Trustees, and let the professional staff come to those 

Commissioners with their recommendations. ·Let them have three, 

four, and five proposals on consultants. Let them have two, 

three, four, or five recommendations for hiring, or take the 

recommendation of the Executive Director after the 

Superintendent, or the Director of Personnel, 0r whatever 

director was responsible for that individual. Let them make 

their recommendations. Those are the kinds of changes I would 

make. 

I would not change the ED down. 

some changes, but, I mean, the structure 

out. I would not do that. But I think 

concept would be the way to go. 

Well, I would make 

the way it is laid 

REPRESENTATIVE DRUCE: But in order to get: L'..ern cc; 

function like a Board of Trustees'· would you think you might 

achieve that more expeditiously if a Governor appointed, let's 

say, two individuals from the private sector, as opposed to-

In some ways I may be indicting the Pennsylvania system, where 

we have elected officials sitting on the Board, who will, in 

essence, function as they do, which is as political figures. 

MR. VAN NOY: That's a good suggest inn. T.Tnq L-.nnr.!. T 

don't know what the makeup would be, but let's say one banker, 

one lawyer, one businessperson, two political people. I am not 

saying that is the way it should go, but that will give you a 

reference. I would keep the number at 10, five from each state. 
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REPRESENTATIVE DRUCE: Why are you committed to that 

number? Would a lesser number reduce the pressures? That way 

there wouldn't be 10 people all wanting_ to have their hands in 

the pot as it relates to hi ring. By reducing the number, you 

would have less pressure because there would be fewer members, 

and more opportunity for the staff then to make discretion;ny 

decisions. 

MR. VAN NOY: That would be a judgment call. 

REPRESENTATIVE DRUCE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Thank you. No one else? (no 

response) Thank you very much, Mr. Van Noy. We do appreciate 

your coming today. 

MR. VAN NOY: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Now I would like to call Richard 

Goepfert, a former Personnel Director, who is presently retired. 

Mr. Goepfert, I would like to thank you for corning 

this morning. We appreciate the time you are willing to put in 

with us. 

If I may, I would just like to ask you, what was your 

position with the Joint Toll Bridge Commission? 

H IC HARD G 0 E PF ER T: Director of Perscnnel. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Director of Personnel. How long 

were you employed by that Commission? 

MR. GOEPFERT: Thirty~seven years. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Thirty-seven years. You went 

back awhile. Okay. 

Can you tell me, in your 37 years, what was the normal 

hiring procedure·at the Commission? 

MR. GOEPFERT: Anything that I may say today, anything 

m;;y ,jnS'>1er fc1 r y0u, respectfully, will only gn ;;::; f:1~- 10 my 

retirement date, which was September of '89. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Yes, we understand that. Thank 

you. 

MR. GOEPFERT: Okay. Your question again? 
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ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: What was the hiring procedure at 

.the Commission up to 1989? 

MR. GOEPFERT: More or less what Mr. 

Mr. Van Noy have stated. You have to rea 1 i ze 

Destribats and 

that the river 

is, say, 110 miles of riverfront that we had bridges across, 

and then geographically the various counties on both sides. 

There were Commissioners, most of the time, from those 

respective counties; example: Mercer County, Hunterdon, 

Warren, Sussex, and so forth; and on the Pennsylvania side, 

Bucks, Northampton, Monroe, and Pike. So, when there was a 

vacancy in complement at any particular toll facility or 

tax-supported facility, the respective Commissioner in that 

geographical area where the person .was retiring or resigning, 

or whatever caused the vacancy-- That particular Commissioner 

'>Ta s cont acted to be made aware, and then he or she would submit 

the name to be considered for replacing the vacant position. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Does that again go back to the 

so-called record, as mentioned by former Chairman Destribats? 

Was there a record for those 37 years? Was there a book? Was 

there a listing of each position and who make the appointments 

f,n those positions? 

MR. GOEPFERT: Yes. We had an "Employee by Residence" 

book. This book would have all of the employees by payroil 

location and where their original hiring was from, what state 

and what county. When that particular employee left the 

Commission, that particular . pos i.t ion was filled again by 

wherever the original appointment was from. That was to keep a 

balance· between Pennsylvania and New Jersey. If we had 300 

employees, we always tried to maintain, as closely as we could, 

150/150--

l\SSEMBLYMJd·l DeCROCE: I understand. 

MR. GOEPFERT: --for permanent, full-time employees. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Was consideration ever given to 

people's qualifications, or was it strictly as mentioned by the 

54 



previous speakers, that they were recommended and usually put 

into place? 

MR. GOEPFERT: To replace a vacancy, the name was 

submitted at a Commission monthly meeting. I sometimes was 

made aware by the Executive Director or the Commissioner that 

they ~,1ere going to submit a name. This would give me some lag 

time to initiate criminal history, a background check. If the 

person was from New Jersey, the New Jersey State Police did 

it. If the person was from Pennsylvania, the Pennsylvania 

State Police did it. It would also give me an opportunity to 

bring the individual into my office in Morrisville to interview 

him, go over the job description, fringe benefits, the salary, 

etc., etc. and to ascertain if the person was genuinely 

interested in the position at the salary that was allocated to 

it. If so, I would also initiate the medical examination. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: In your position, though, as 

Personnel Director, you-- As Director of Personnel, you really 

never went out and solicited any hirees. They were all 

submitted to you, in all probability. 

MR. GOEPFERT: Most all of the time. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCRGCE: Most all of the time. 

MR. GOEPFERT: Few exceptions. 

Well, wnen you came 

executives, Mr. Goepfert, those people in the higher ranking 

positions, were there any specific qualifications given to you 

for your examination, to make sure they qualified for the 

position that the Commission was hiring for? Or, was it just 

f ait accompli as usual? 

MR . GOEPFERT! Not 
1>1 hen we h i red a Chi e f 

really, 

that 

no. I 

there 

think I do recall 

were some -- there 

were more than one 

Commission members. 

Engineer 

applicant. They were inter·.'iewed 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: They were interviewed? 

MR. GOEPFERT: Yes. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN 

interviewed them? 

DeCROCE: But you 

MR. GOEPFERT: I was there. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: You were there? 

MR. GOEPFERT: Right. 

never personally 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Were you asked to participate i.n 

these hirings? 

MR. GOEPFERT: Yes, yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Were there criteria for various 

jobs at the Commission, regardless of whether they were 

executive position, a superintendent position, maintenance 

work, or toll taker? Were there certain criteria and 

parameters that were followed when these people were hired, or 

were they just arbitrarily sent over by some Assemblyman on 

this side of the river or some Representative on that side of 

the river, or a Senator on either side of the river? 

MR. GOEPFERT: Legislators who were interested-- I 

did, through the years, receive calls personal calls from 

legislators, but I always suggested that the legislator contact 

the respective Commissioner, and most all of the time they 

did. I never acted on applications strictly from a legislat~r, 

but through the Commissioners. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Would a member of the general 

public have an equal opportunity for employment, would you say? 

MR. GOEPFERT:. Only up until '89, if that person could 

contact ·the respective Commissioner who would 

vacancy make contact with the Commissioner. 

Commissioners interviewed applicants before they 

handle the 

Some of our 

came to my 

office. They were well aware of who they were recommending, 

and so forth. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: At any time, Mr. C~(·H:;pfc.:>rL rli 1
'. 

you ask to put into effect any procedures to improve the 

system, as you saw it? I'm sure you must have during your 37 

years. I'm sure you had to do something. 
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MR. GOEPFERT: Most of the time that I was Director of 

Personnel, that is exactly the way we handled things -- the way 

it has been stated. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Okay. So there was really never 

any input from any of the people at your level, other than the 

fact that you would sit in on interviews of particular 

applicants, and you would then hire and explain their positions 

to them? 

MR . GOEPFERT: Right. The Commission did the hiring 

at a Commission meeting. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Did the Executive Di rector ever 

confer with you regarding recommendations for new hires? 

MR. GOEPFERT: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: At all times? 

MR. GOEPFERT: We worked very closely fur each 

Commission meeting. The Personnel and Finance Committee 1Jf the 

Commission would meet, say, like Mr. Destribats said, at 9: 00 

in the morning. I would prepare an agenda in advance for the 

Personnel and Finance Committee and submit it to the Executive 

Director for his approval. Then that was sent out to 

Commission 

Commission 

members 

me_eting 

with 

day, 

our agendas. 

they had a 

So, in fact, on c: 

Personnel and Finance 

(~ o mm i t tee agenda , a 1 on g w =.. c r1 a reg u 1 a r agenda , and so i o rt h and 

so forth. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: 

every meeting? 

standing 

MR. GOEPFERT: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: 

committees? It was 

Was there a specific agenda for 

Commission 

not unusua 1 

meetings 

to have 

as 

a 

wel 1 as 

specific 

agenda for each of those meetings? 

1-::;0EPFERT: ~ 
I 

committees, but there was a specific agenda for the Personnel 

and Finance Committee. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: 

MR. GOEPFERT: That 

I see. 

would include names that were 

going to be submitted for hiring, promotions, and so forth and 

so on. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: In your capacity as Personnel 

Director, it is my understanding that the Bridge Superin~endent 

evaluated the employees in his district for purposes of 

awarding increases each year. Did you have any input in that 

at all? Did you do any evaluations yourself, or, again, was it 

fait accompli by that Superintendent, whoever he may be? 

MR. GOEPFERT: The only evaluations that were ongoing 

were the initial six-month evaluations of new, full-time 

employees. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Who did the evaluations, sir? 

MR. GCEPFERT: The department head. The six-montli 

evaluations for new employees were two months, t·.No months, two 

months. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Yes. 

MR. GOEPFERT: And that form was completed, one on one 

with the department head and the new employee. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: On an annual basis, ~-"ould the 

Commission ju~t arbitrarily issue an across-the-board increase 

for certain le?el employees, wherever they may be bridge 

maintenance people, toll takers, Superintendents, before you 

got to the executive branch? 

MR. GOEPFERT: The yearly budget was a calendar budget 

January 1 to December 31. Those budgets were worked on in 

August/September, over a time frame, and Commissioners would 

decide if a cost-of-living was going to be given. If so, how 

much, and it was given across-the-board to all employees. 

really formal evaluations of the positions, just an 

across-the-board raise? 
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MR. GOEPFERT:. Through my 37 years, we. tried, a couple 

of times, yearly evaluations, and, for one reason or another, 

it didn't seem to work out. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Do you kriow what those reasons 

may have been? 

MR. GOEPFERT: Beino a small organization 290, 300 

employees-- No, I don't think I will answer that. No. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Okay. Were raises ever denied 

any persons who worked for the Commission? 

MR . GOEPFERT: If the person was on suspension for 

violation of rules or regulations, or something like that, 

raises were held up. If the employee was on-- At the time we 

had supplemental sick leave. Raises were not granted while an 

employee was on supplemental sick leave. 

ASSEMBLYMAN !JeCROCE: Mr. Destribats 

during his eight-year 

anyone ever dismissed. 

Rarely was anyone ever 

MR . GOEPFERT : 

tenure, rarely, that 

In your 37 years, 

dismissed? 

We had a few for 

:1e r::ould 

was that 

various 

drug abuse, narcotics, different things like that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: How about pilferage? 

stated that 

recall, ~~ .. -Ci. s 

practice--

reasons 

MR. GOEPFERT: Several times during my career. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: .Many times during my discussiuns 

and I don't know if I am out of with people who came to me 

line. If I am, Counselor, you ought to tell me. Many people 

told me that a lot of times in the different districts, certain 

employees made it a practice to arbitrarily make up some 

additional lost income, and it could be done with the system 

which, frankly, is presently in place. In your experience over 

those 37 years, would you say that was not unusual? 

MR. GOEPFERT: I am not q u a 1 i E i e d t 0 2 n :3 ".-i e r 1- 11 ,1 t . 

ASSEMBLY.MAN DeCROCE: 

questions from any 

Representative Carn? 

other 

59 

Okay. 

member 

Are there any other 

of this Committee? 



REPRESENTATIVE CARN: . Thank you. How long were you 

Director of Personnel? 

MR. GOEPFERT: Twenty-some years. 

REPRESENTATIVE CARN: So" what position· did you hold 

prior to that? 

MR. GOEPFERT: I moved up through the ranks. I 

started out in September of '52 as a toll collector; then full 

Sergeant; then Assistant to· the Executive Director; and then 

Director of Personnel. 

REPRESENTATIVE CARN: Did you have to take any tests 

to become Assistant to the Executive Director or Director of 

Personnel? 

MR. GOEPFERT: No. 

REPRESENTATIVE CARN: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Mr. Green -- Assemblyman Green? 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: Yes' Mr. Chai rm an. I W()U ld j ~JS t 

like to follow-up on a question you asked earlier in terms of 

the fact that, if you had just a person from the public who was 

coming in , that the on 1 y way he wo u 1 d get a recommend at ion 

would have· to be through a Commissioner. Am I correct? 

MR. GOEPFERT: Right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: That means that if a Commissioner 

did not recommend you, well then, you did not go anyplace. 

MR. GOEPFERT: That's right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: So in a sense, the Commission is 

really in control of who gets hired, rather than a manager? An 

example: Normally a manager of any business may make 

recommendations to the boa rd in terms of who he fee ls should 

get hired. It would seem like that is just a reverse policy 

there. Would you say yes or no? 

MR. GOEPFERT: That's right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: So that means the public itself 

does not really get a chance to get a job, because the 
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Commission, in_a sense 1 controls who gets a j.ob". Would you say 

yes or no? 

MR. GOEPFERT: Except that there were Commissioners 

from time to time who would ask me -- or who would even come 

down to the office and review applications from just rank and 

file people who would submit them. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: So, for example, if a person-- A 

prime example is in my county. We have ~ policy e~en with the 

unclassified jobs that they are posted in any governmental 

building. If an individual comes in and for some reason or 

another asks you, as the person who is in the position to hire 

him, "Is it possible I can get that job?" you would not have 

the authority to hi re him. You would have to take it to a 

Commissioner. Am I correct? 

MR. GOEPFERT: That's right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: So in a sense the C !J mm i s s ion e r 

controls everything, even the management, because if you can't 

hire anybody, that means you are really not the manager. Am I 

correct? 

MR. GOEPFERT: That's right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

MR. GOEPFERT: We would average, I would say, about 

1000 applications a year that would come in. These were 

permanent and part-time, or temporary applications. We kept 

them filed by New Jersey and Pennsylvania, and by county. So, 

if a Commissioner was interested in who had been applying for 

jobs in his area, we could just pull the file in, say, Mercer 

County, New Jersey, or Bucks County, Pennsylvania, and that 

Commissioner could glance through all the applications we had 

on file, if they wanted to, and some Commissioners did. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: One other question, Mr. Ch,--;irman: 

Are there any qualifications for these Commissioners to be able 

to know how to interview individuals, so that they can 
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professionally give t~eir opinion in terms of whether they are 

qualified for the jobs or not? 

MR. GOEPFERT: No. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: I mean, that would seem rather 

odd, that as a Commissioner that as a layperson he would be 

in a position to be able to dictate to you who should be able 

to get a job, because of the fact that he does not have the 

ability to be able to do that because of his experience. 

MR. GOEPFERT: Well, li.ke I said, the Commissioner 

gets a person approved at a Commission meeting, and then lets 

go of the hand. The minutes of. any particular meeting would 

say, "John Brown is recommended for employment at such and 

such,". and the bottom line in that paragraph would say, "based 

on satisfactory personnel processing." Then it was dumped in 

our laps to follow through with medical exam, State Police, and 

so forth. 

There were employees from time to time who were held 

up for medic a 1 reasons, even though they were approved 

not start employment unti 1 

at a 

the Commission meeting. They did 

medical was satisfied. 

~.SSEMBLYI'f.tAN GREEN: In 

medical reasons, other than for 

your 20 years, other thc:n 

a police background checkup, 

did a person ·just not qualify? Have you ever denied a person 

the ability ·to have a job that was recommended by a 

Commissioner? 

made 

"No. 

What I am saying to you is, as a Commissioner I have 

a recommendation. Have 

Sorry, Mr. Commissioner, 

you ever told a Commissioner, 

I cannot hire this person"? 

MR. GOEPFERT: There were some cases of falsifying an 

application. That would. be brought to the attention of the 

Commissioner at a P&F Committee, and then they would decide. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: Again -- and I think I said it to 

you clearly -- with the background check, am I correct-- For 

those reasons, I can understand excluding a person. For 
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med cal reasons,.. I can also see.· excluding a person. I'm 

say ng, if a person met all of the criteria but there was 

something professionally about the individual that you felt he 

should not have this job, have you ever told a Commissioner, " I 

cannot hire this person"? 

MR. GOEPFERT: No. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN: So in a sense you are 

me, "Whatever the Commissioner says, that is the way 

saying to 

it has to 

go." Would you say yes or no? 

Nickles? 

MR. GOEPFERT: If all the other criteria were met. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GREEN:· Right. Okay. Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Thank you, Mr. Green. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NICKLES: No, thank you. 

Mr. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Representative Leh? 

REPRESENTATIVE LEH: I yield to Representati~e Druce. 

REPRESENTATIVE DRUCE: Mr. Chairman, I just want to 

follow-up on a question Mr. Green was asking. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Representative Druce. 

REPRESENTATIVE DRUCE: Maybe I can word this in a 

different way: If we could remove our geographical boun~ari~~ 

for a second and not think in terms of the counties, what 

percentage of the time, would you say in your experience, that 

a Commissiorter may have recommended an individual, yet if you 

had the ability to look through your entire reference file of 

individuals-- What percentage of the time would you have been 

able to produce a better qualified individual for that position 

than what the Commissioner had presented? 

MR. GOEPFERT: I don't know. I don't know. 

REPRESENTATIVE DRUCE: A guesstimate? I mean, were 

there times when y0u w0uld look and see that a Commissi,:'ner h'.cl 

recommended someone, albeit qualified, that you would think to 

yourself, "I've got these two or three other applications that 

came in via some other method, without political connection," 
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but yet you. could not advance thos_e even though they may have 
. .. : . . . . ' 

actually had more qualifications than the individual who was 

selected? A couple of times, half the time? 

MR. GOEPFERT: I don't really know what you are 

getting to as far as "other qualifications." Most of the 

entrance level applications, as long as you had a high sch0ol 

education and so forth, that was it; 

REPRESENTATIVE DRUCE: I would s~spect, sir, that 

those are minimum requirements. What I am trying to ascertain, 

I guess, specifically is: While individuals who may have been 

hired were qualified who had connections with a Commissioner-

For each one of those, how many applicants may there have been, 

who maybe had better qualifications maybe they had an 

associate's degree from 

more qualified than an 

a community college, and were maybe 

individual with just a high school 

degree-- How many of those individuals may have been bypassed 

because they lacked the recommendation of a Commissioner in 

order to move their application forward? 

MR. GOEPFERT: A very small percentage, I would say. 

REPRESENTATIVE DRUCE: So most of the time the 

Commissioners then, if I 

recommending individuals who 

than other individuals who 

directly from other means? 

am hearing 

more times 

may have 

you 

were 

just 

correctly, were 

better qualified 

applied to you 

MR. GOEPFERT: I would say that the ones the 

Commissioners recommended were qualified. 

REPRESENTATIVE DRUCE: 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: 

REPRESENTATIVE LEH: 

Mr. Goepfert--

REPRESENTATIVE LEH: 

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

Thank you. Representative Leh? 

Yes. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

--you said you had your position 

as Director of Personnel now for 20-some years. 

MR. GOEPFERT: Twenty-some years. 
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REPRESENTATIVE .. LEH: Who ·ha~ the ~uthority to hire and 

fire the Director of Personnel? 

MR. GOEPFERT: Who has the authority? 

REPRESENTATIVE LEH: Who has the power, or the 

authority, to hire and fire the Director of Personnel? 

MR. GOEPFERT: Al 1 hi rin<J and firing w3s done by the 

Commission members. 

REPRESENTATIVE LEH: Okay. During your 20-some years, 

did you ever feel pressured in any way by any of the 

Commissioners, the Executive Director, or any elected officials 

regarding the hiring of certain personnel over other 

personnel? You know, if I were an elected off ic i a 1 that had a 

legislative district next to the river, or I was a Commissioner 

even, and I came to you and said, "Hey, I know this 

individual. This person worked very hard on my reelection 

carnpaign. I ~,;ould like to see him have a jr:,b. Co u 1 d y 0 u s ~:: e 

that he is moved up, or could you see that he takes preference 

over someone else?"-

occur? 

Has that ever happened? Did that ever 

MR. GOEPFERT: Are you talking about a brand-new 

employee? 

REPRESENTATIVE LEH: Yes, somebody coming in from the 

outside, over somebody who just submitted his name 

just off the street. 

somebody 

MR. GOEPFERT: Again, the name would come from a 

Commissioner for the vacancy. 

saying 

friend 

friend 
. 1 I l-

REPRESENTATIVE LEH: Do you ever recall a Commissioner 

this to 

of mine 

of mine, 
• -1 :'; 

you: "Hey, this name was given to me by a 

who serves in the Legislature," or, "He is a 

and I would 1 i ke to see him have this job. I 

; n ;' 1 l .,· } . 

this job, or do what you can--" Be a little subtle about it. 

"Do what you can to make sure that he gets the job." 

MR. GOEPFERT: No. 
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R~PR~SENTATI.VE_ LEH:. One Ia st qu.est.io!l:. Was any9ne, 

to your knowledge -- and you were there until 1989, I believe-

MR. GOEPFERT: September '89, right. 

REPRESENTATIVE LEH: Was anyone, to your knowledge, 

ever fired to make room for someone else? 

MR. GOEPFERT: Never; never. 

REPRESENTATIVE LEH: Okay. There was an article here 

and I didn't read the whole article-- I realize that 

everything that is in the newspapers is not necessarily true. 

There is an article, I guess it is in The Express Times, about 

a Mary Ann Drake. She said· she was fired because she didn't 

pay the proper heed to one of the Commissioners who came 

through the tollbooth. Was this something unique, or did this 

happen more than once, in yo_ur recollection, in. your 20-some 

years? And, what recourse did someone have who was fired? Did 

he or she have any appeal process? 

MR. GOEPFERT: What was the name? 

REPRESENTATIVE LEH: Mary Ann Drake. She was fired, I 

think it was in 1986. She failed to acknowledge, or failed to 

pay the proper heed to a Commissioner. The Commissioner then 

resigned, but nevertheless, this woman was out of a job. I 

just wondered, gee whiz, if that was in the private sector, she 

may have had some recourse. She may have had an appeal process. 

MR. GOEPFERT: I · think if you go back and check the 

records, you will find that that person was a part-time 

employee, hourly rated. I don't think the person was fired. I 

think the person was let ·go for noncompletion of a work 

assignment. 

REPRESENTATIVE LEH: Well, you' 11 have to excuse· me. 

I only have the newspaper to go by, and her quote said that she 

MR. GOEPFERT: Like I said earlier, the only firings I 

can recall were those for cause. 
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REPRESENTA'I'IVE LEH: ·In the case of a firing, is there 

an appeal process? If I am fired-- If I am a worker and I am 

fired, what course of action do I take, or do I just pack my 

bags ~nd go home? 

MR. GOEPFERT: We ha';e a grievance procedure. 
Cl 1. 1_ :-:rel ~':;d 11 ut in ~ho ··r~:-nlnyees' M;::inuri l," · .. Ihi.ch 

T 1-
l - lS 

er1ployee has. Th2y can f 1~ l:ry.; the procedures ic tll'= grie'1anr.:e 

sectio~. They can appeal. 

REPRESENTATIVE LEH: Who would they appeal to? Would 

they appeal to you? Would they appeal to the Commissioners? 

MR. GOEPFERT: To the Executive Director, and then he 

could forward it to the Commission members. 

REPRESENTATIVE LEH: Okay. Those are all the 

questions I have, Mr. Chairman. Thank you very much. 

ASSEMBLYr.it .. AN DeCRO<.:E: Thank you, Represen~.Jt--i·:e Leh. 

/ l r-:: [ '-=- s p (' r~ :: '--:; ' 

you ~, e r y much , Mr . Goe pf e r t . vJ e do a pp rec i a t e the r act th a t 

you came here today to come before us. 

MR. GOEPFERT: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN DeCROCE: Ladies and gentlemen, that 

concludes our testimony for today. I '"10uld like to 3i:ate r 1_;:. 

the record, though, that some persons contacted for these 

hearings declined to come forward in a public forum, because 

they were concerned about possible reprisals; real or imagined, 

I don't know, but from the Commission. 

Now, if that is true, it really will not be tolerated 

by either side of the river. This Committee will continue its 

o v e rs i g ht of the · Joint To 11 B r i d g e Co mm i s s ion , and wo u 1 d 1 o o k 

very unfavorably upon any inappropriate action by the 

Commission as a result of these hearings. 

will reconvene at a date to be announced later. 

for coming. 

(HEARING CONCLUDED) 
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